
4 PSETA Annual Report 2010 8/20/10 1:30 PM Page 1 

Composite

C M Y CM MY CY CMY K

Annual Report

2009-2010



4 PSETA Annual Report 2010 8/20/10 1:30 PM Page 2 

Composite

C M Y CM MY CY CMY K

VISION

The PSETA's vision is to facilitate effective skills development in South Africa's public service.

MISSION

The PSETA aims to develop a dedicated, skilled and productive public service workforce through the effective
coordination of skills development, continued education, focused learnerships and training programmes in the public

service for a vibrant economy and a winning nation.

SCOPE

The Skills Development Act, 37 of 2008, as amended, through the Sector Education and Training Authorities (SETAs),
provides the institutional framework for training and skills development.

The PSETA's stakeholder scope covers all national Government Departments, all provincial administrations,
as well as Parliament, national legislatures, organised labour and identified parastatals.
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“We are working to ensure the smooth incorporation of the skills development and
training component and look forward to building a strong, focused and performance team in the Department with

an overall goal of creating synergy between formal education and workplace training.
The move is set to overhaul the education and training landscape in South Africa and we invite the private sector,

organised labour and civil society to actively participate and join the skills revolution in our country.”

Minister of Higher Education and Training, Dr Blade Nzimande
Media statement on the transfer of the skills development and training sector

to the Department of Higher Education and Training, 4 November 2009
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The Public Service Sector Education & Training Authority
(PSETA) is one of the SETAs responsible for training and
skills development in South Africa.

The PSETA was established on 20 March 2000 to
facilitate, coordinate and monitor the implementation of
the National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS) in the
public sector and participating parastatals.

The PSETA's objectives are aligned with the Skills
Development Act, 37 of 2008, as amended, and the
performance indicators of the NSDS. The emphasis is
on identifying skills shortages in the public sector,
facilitating training and development and encouraging
the sector to investment in skills development to increase
capacity and competence and improve service delivery.
In addition, the PSETA aims to improve employment for
the previously disadvantaged, assist work-seekers and
retrenched workers to enter the labour market, support
employers to find suitably qualified employees and
promote skills for self-employment.

The PSETA is funded by National Treasury through the
budget of the Department of Public Service and
Administration (DPSA). The DSPA bears administrative
responsibility for the PSETA through departmental policies,
processes and procedures. In August 2009, the skills
development and training sector was transferred from
the Department of Labour to the Department of Higher
Education and Training. As such, the PSETA reports to
the Ministers of Public Service and Administration and
Higher Education and Training, in terms of the amended
Skills Development Act.

Key initiatives include the Learning Programmes unit,
which facilitates and manages the development and
implementation of learning programmes for the public
sector and the Skills Planning unit, which identify scarce
and critical skills needs and prepares the sector skills
plan. In addition, the PSETA ETQA unit is responsible
for the monitoring and auditing of learning and competence
as measured against NQF-registered national standards.
The PSETA's NSDS indicators focus on prioritising and

communicating critical and scarce skills; promoting and
accelerating quality training in the workplace; assisting
designated groups, including new workplace entrants, to
participate in accredited, work-integrated learning and
work-based programmes to acquire skills for the labour
market or self-employment; and improving the quality
and relevance of the provision of skills development.

The PSETA participated in a Career Expo in support of Cell C’s “Take a Girl
Child to Work” initiative.

Profile

PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT   1

In order for the achieve the target of halving
unemployment by 2014, the number of new
jobs created in the economy would need to

increase substantially, and the skills profile of
the economically active population would need

to alter significantly.

The duties of the Sector Education and Training
Authorities (SETAs) entail:
• Developing and implementing a sector skills plan
• Developing and administering learnerships
• Supporting the implementation of the National

Qualifications Framework
• Undertaking quality assurance
• Disbursing levies collected from employers in

each sector apart from the public sector
• Reporting to the Minister of Labour and to the

South African Qualifications Authority.
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Highlights

• Exceeded NSDS targets by entering 3 211 workers
in learning programmes and having 2 812 workers
complete their programmes against targets of 2 000
and 950 respectively.

• Met NSDS targets by accrediting 33 service providers,
developing 24 qualifications and certifying 25
moderators.

• Hosted a National Skills Development Seminar in
Bloemfontein to share information about skills
development best practice, which resulted in a decision
to make this an annual event.

• Received positive feedback from stakeholders about
the PSETA's performance over the past five years,
which supported our application for re-establishment
for the next five years.

• Strengthened relationships and cooperation with other
government-related SETAs, such as the SASSETA
(Safety and Security SETA).

• Participated in seminars and forums, including the
Department of Correctional Services seminar and the
Provincial Growth and Development Forums and
Public Service Trainers Forum, where we contributed
to the functioning of the Forum.

• Received 92 Workplace Skills Plans (WSPs) and
Annual Training Reports (ATRs).

• Launched the PSETA's new Management Information
System, which enables the online submissions of
workplace skills plans and annual training reports.

• Successfully updated the Sector Skills Plan and
uploaded the Scarce and Critical Skills List onto the
ESSA (Economic Society SA) system.

• Trained skills development facilitators to use the

sector's Organising Framework for Occupations and
new Scarce and Critical Skills List.

• Participated in skills development seminars hosted
by the National Department of Social Development
and SAQA's(South African Qualifications Authority)
Consultative Forum to develop a curriculum for Career
Guidance Practitioners.

• Achieved full accreditation as an Education and
Training Quality Assurance (ETQA) entity for the public
service sector.

• Accredited strategic sectoral training providers for
the Department of Home Affairs Learning Centre and
the Official Statistics Academy for Statistics SA.

• Assisted a fifth Institute of Sectoral and/or
Occupational Excellence (ISOE) to achieve strategic
provider status as aligned with the NSDS II (2005-
2010) related target.

Testimony to the past year's performance

We take pleasure in highlighting a selection of
achievements across all our domains during

the 2009'2010 financial year. These activities
illustrate the relevance of the PSETA's role in

the education and training landscape in
Gauteng, and nationally - a role that we pursue
intently and look forward to continuing in the

years ahead.

Gauteng’s Department of Finance Learnership Graduations: Recognition for
best performing learner.
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South Africa's
unemployment rate rose
to 25.2% or 4.3 million
people in the first quarter
of 2010. Faced with a
challenge of this
magnitude, there is no
doubt that the country
can benefit from the
critical role of the SETAs

to support the structural capacity of the economy to
create decent, sustainable jobs.

The dire need for skills development and training across
all sectors of the economy does not, however, detract
from the speculation about the impending changes to
the SETA landscape when the new NSDS III (revised
National Skills Development Strategy) comes into effect
in April 2011.

While some uncertainty exists about the exact dimension
of the changes ahead, there is no doubt about the need
for this process and its significance in increasing the
efficiency and capacity of all SETAs to fulfill their mandate.
The PSETA looks forward to participating in this process
to clarify its role and future contribution to creating
competence and capacity in the public sector.

A challenging environment

As the incoming Board Chairman, I share the PSETA's
vision of empowering workers with the education, skills
and knowledge needed to take their rightful place within
a national public service workforce that embraces the
responsibility of providing the people of South Africa with
service delivery that is uncompromised.

Over the past months I have been involved with the efforts
of the PSETA Board to finalise its establishment as an
independent public entity, compliant with legislation and
with increased resources to deliver on its mandate. Since
the PSETA's relisting as a Schedule 3A public entity by
the Minister of Finance on 28 April 2006, this has been
an ongoing journey which has continuously been affected
by a number of systemic challenges.

The lack of capacity to institute appropriate governance,
management and administrative mechanisms,
accountability to two Ministers, a financial model with
limited income generation and the continued need for
the DPSA's involvement in the de facto management
functions of the PSETA, continuously delayed the
conclusion of this process.

In addition, staff uncertainty and speculation about the
impending changes to the SETA environment created a
certain amount of instability in the workplace.
Compounded, these factors also impinged on the PSETA
ability to fully deliver against NSDS targets and improve
its performance in this period ahead of the recertification
of SETAs in 2011.

Good progress was made during the last quarter of the
reporting period with identifying suitable candidates for
critical vacancies, specifically the permanent appointments
of a Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer.
I am satisfied that these processes will be satisfactorily
concluded in the new financial year. In the interim, we
remain committed to fulfill our mandate through improved
governance and enhanced capacity.

Progress and achievements

I am pleased to report that our overall performance met
the requirements of our service level agreement with the
Department of Labour. The areas of variance with our

Chairperson's Review
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Education and skills training are non-negotiable imperatives for developing
an economically active and skilled workforce in South Africa. The SETA

system is integral to skills development and job creation to meet the challenge
of reducing unemployment to below 15% by 2015.

Mahmood Fadal, Chairperson,
PSETA Board

Skills development achievements across all SETAs
up to 31 October 2009:
• 10 885 learners registered in artisan trades
• 75 300 workers completed training in scarce

and critical skills through learnerships,
apprenticeships and other learning programmes

• 39 207 unemployed workers were assisted through
the National Skills Fund to enter learning
programmes.

Budget vote speech by Minister Membathisi
Mdladlana, Department of Labour, 13 April 2010
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Chairperson's Review (continued)

NSDS targets, identified by an assessment by the
Department and indicated in the Performance Review
section of this report, will be addressed as priorities in
the forthcoming financial year.

During the past year the PSETA was involved in a series
stakeholder meetings to improve our governance practices
and service delivery, and advance our positioning as a
fully compliant public service SETA. The constructive
feedback about our performance over the past five years
supported our application for re-establishment as the
public service SETA for the next five years.

We again achieved full accreditation status as an ETQA
for the public service sector and accredited strategic
sectoral training providers for the Department of Home
Affairs Learning Centre and the official Statistics Academy
for Statistics SA. The ETQA business unit also assisted
a fifth Institute of Sectoral and/or Occupational Excellence
(ISOE) to achieve strategic provider status as aligned
with the related NSDS II (2005-2010) target.

The PSETA's participation in a number of seminars,
workshops and forums strengthened our relationships
with key stakeholders and identified stakeholder needs
and ways to improve our service delivery. These interactions
will continue in the year ahead to support our commitment
to providing the public sector with a skilled and competent
workforce.

Appreciation

Our progress during the past year would not have been
possible without support from all our stakeholders. In
this regard I would like to thank the Minister of Public
Service and Administration, Mr Richard Baloyi, the
Minister of Labour, Mr Membathisi Mdladlana and the
Minister of Higher Education and Training, Dr Blade
Nzimande, for their guidance. I would also like to thank
the outgoing PSETA Chairperson, Mr Tahir Maepa, for
his contribution to moving the PSETA forward and my
fellow Board members for their constructive participation
in the activities of the PSETA.

We thank our valued partners, stakeholders and suppliers
for their active interest in our activities and the PSETA
team for taking the PSETA forward on its journey to
provide public sector workers with the skills they need
to serve the South African public competently and with
pride.

Going forward

The PSETA Board believes that similar to our own situation,
many of the difficulties that beset SETA performance
over the past five years have been and still are systemic,
and that restructuring the SETAs will not necessarily
resolve the issues. A focus rather on skills transfer and
partnering between related SETAs could more effectively
address the challenges.

We are cognisant of the magnitude of the task at hand.
Despite much progress and many achievements from
within the SETA environment, millions of South Africa's
youth are still outside the formal learning system and
unemployed. There is an opportunity now, in the year
ahead of the new SETA landscape in 2011, to consolidate
the gains made and focus on massifying skills to create
employment, increase productivity and fast-track improved
service delivery across all sectors in South Africa.

As a Board we will also work towards placing skills
development on the national agenda. One of the ways of
doing this is to arrange a summit for public sector
employers and representatives from the unions, labour
and education to deliberate on the way forward to ensure
a constructive and productive skills development future
for the country.

I look forward to continuing my term as Chairperson of
the PSETA Board and supporting its progression towards
autonomy. Our focus is on empowering public servants
and enabling them to embrace service delivery in true
Batho Pele spirit.

Mr Mahmood Fadal
Chairperson
PSETA Board
4 August 2010
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Governance framework

The PSETA is governed by the Skills Development Act
(SDA), 37 of 2008, as amended, and the Skills
Development Levies Act (SDLA), 9 of 1999, as well as
the PSETA Constitution as set out in the Government
Gazette No 28005 Volume 483 of 8 September 2005.
It was relisted as an independent public entity as described
in Section 3(b) of the Public Finance Management Act
(PFMA), 1 of 1999 on 28 April 2006 and aims to achieve
autonomy as SETA by 2011.

The PSETA is mandated, as a SAQA-accredited SETA in
accordance with the South African Qualifications Authority
(SAQA) Act, 58 of1995, to develop and implement a
sector skills plan for the public sector within the framework
of the National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS) and
to monitor and audit achievements in this regard in terms
of national standards and qualifications as they pertain
to the public sector.

The reporting lines, legislative framework and interactive
stakeholder relationships through which the PSETA
currently gives effect to its mandate are:

Corporate Governance

PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT   5

SDA, SDLA
MoL MPSA

SAQA Act

PS HRD
Strategy

NSDS

PFMA

King Report
on CG (II)

Protocol on
CG in the PS

SLA

PSETA Board

ExCo

Staff

Authority

The governance structure of the Public Sector Service Education and
Training Authority (PSETA) guides its strategy, operational effectiveness and performance assessment

to ensure that it functions as a responsible and accountable public entity.

KEY
CG: Corporate Governance
MoL: Minister of Labour
MPSA: Minister of Public Service & Administration
ExCo: Executive Committee
HRD: Human Resource Development
NSDS: National Skills Development Strategy

PFMA: Public Finance Management Act
PS: Public Service
SLA: Service Level Agreement
SAQA: South African Qualifications Association
SDA: Skills Development Act
SDLA: Skills Development & Learnerships Act
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Corporate Governance (continued)

The relationship between the PSETA and the Department
of Labour, until the new dispensation in 2011, is governed
by a service level agreement (SLA) that is renewed annually
and confirms the PSETA's function in terms of the Skills
Development Act and NSDS. The determination by the
Minister of Labour in respect of the SLA is final and
binding and serves as the primary directive for the PSETA
Board to guide the functioning of the PSETA.

Composition of the Board

The PSETA Board was established in October 2006 and
inaugurated on 5 July 2007 by the Minister of Public
Service and Administration as the authority accountable
for sound governance at the PSETA. Its role is to provide
leadership and direction to the PSETA in achieving its
NSDS targets.

The Board is appointed by the Minister of Public Service
and Administration, as the Minister responsible for
Public Service, for a term of five years. The composition
of the Board is in line with the Section 11 of Skills
Development Act and can consists of 20 members
comprising eight employer representatives (government
at senior management levels), eight organised labour
representatives, the PSETA Chief Executive Officer,
one expert from each of the PSETA constituencies,
and an independent Chairperson.

At least four Board meetings are scheduled annually
and special meetings convened when necessary to
consider urgent matters. During the period under review
eight Board meetings took place. Meeting dates,
member attendance and equity status are reflected in
Table 1.

Board member

Mr M H Fadal
(Chairperson)
Mr T Maepa
Mr H Konkie
Mr H Bresler
Ms R Modipa

Mr L Phepheng
Ms N Lebaka
Mr B Maduna
Mr L Tsipane
Ms K Kgang

Mr F Fields
Mr P Huma
Dr A Mahapa **
Mr P Matshidze**

Ms A Samboer
Ms T Zulu
Mr J Rantete**
Mr S Majombozi**
Ms I Kuhn
Mr A Josiah

Ms K Moseki

Organisation

PSA
NEHAWU
PSA
Premier's Office:
Limpopo
POPCRU
NEHAWU
DoL
DPSA
Department of
Home Affairs
POPCRU
NEHAWU
 POPCRU
Council for
Medical Schemes
PSA
POPCRU
PSETA
PSETA
PSA
Premier's Office:
Free State
Premier's Office:
North West

Representing

Independent

Labour
Labour
Labour
Employer

Labour
Labour
Employer
Employer
Employer

Labour
Labour
Labour
Employer

Labour
Labour
Act CEO
Act CEO
Labour
Employer

Employer

Equity
status*

CM

BM
BM
WM
BF

BM
BF
BM
BM
BF

BM
BM
BM
BM

CF
BF
BM
BM
WF
CM

BF

Board meetings
2009 2010

Strategic
Planning

Workshops
30
Apr

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

4
Jun

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

25
Jul

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

7,8
Nov

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

-
�

�

�

�

-
�

�

�

5
Dec

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

-
-

�

�

�

-
�

�

�

25
Jan

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

-
-

�

�

-
-
�

�

�

26
Feb

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

-
-

�

�

-
-
�

�

�

8
Mar

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

-
-

�

�

-
-
�

�

�

4,5.
5.09

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

-
-

�

�

-
-
�

�

�

27,28.
2.10

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

-
-

�

�

-
-
�

�

�

Table 1 Board members, equity status and meeting attendance for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010
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* Black male (BM), Coloured male (CM), White male (WM), Black female (BF); Coloured female (CF)
**Board member left during the year

Corporate Governance (continued)

PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT   7

During the 2009'2010 financial year, four resignations
from the Board occurred. The appointments decreased
the number of labour and employer representitives serving
on the Board.

Governance principles

The PSETA's governance principles rest on policies and
procedures that include strategic planning, business goals
and annually agreed objectives aligned with the NSDS
and provides a performance framework for the day-to-
day management of these.

The Board is committed to the principles of accountability
and integrity and its responsibilities are governed by the
Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1 of 1999, as
amended, and guided by the principles outlined in the
King II Corporate Governance Report.

The Board approves the PSETA's mission, strategy, goals,
operating policies and priorities and monitors compliance
and performance against business objectives.

 Governing the PSETA

Executive responsibility for the PSETA vests in the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) as delegated to the incumbent
by the Board, and the management team is responsible
for strategy implementation and the day-to-day affairs of
the organisation according to the policies, processes and
systems approved by the Board.

Board Committees

The PSETA Board has six subcommittees, which assist
the Board in discharging its responsibilities. The
subcommittees consist of an equal number of members
from organised labour and employers and are responsible

for the following areas: auditing, finance, learnerships
and ETQA, skills planning, and human resources and
legal affairs, and includes an Executive Committee as
detailed below. The committees were convened with clear
deliverables and timelines.

Executive Committee

The Board is assisted by an Executive Committee (Exco)
to which members are appointed in accordance with the
PSETA Constitution. The term of office of the Executive
Committee is similar to that of the Board.

The Committee is responsible for ensuring that the PSETA
complies with the financial requirements of the PFMA,
its Constitution and other applicable legislation, and for
the supervision of the operational management and
administration of the PSETA and its managers.

During the reporting period Exco members were Mr T
Maepa (Chairperson), Mr MH Fadal, Mr J Konkie, Ms I
Kuhn, Mr F Fields, Mr P Matshidze*, Dr A Mahapa*, Mr
L Tsipane, Ms R Modipa, Ms BJ Nake (Acting CEO), Mr
S Majombozi (Acting CEO)*, Mr J Rantete (Acting CEO)*
(* denotes having left during the year). The Exco met
nine times, during 2009 on 1,2 April, 28 June, 11,12
July, 3 September, 16 October, 12 November and 28
November, and in 2010 on 29 January and 11 March.

Management

The CEO is accountable for the recruitment, appointment
and management of all the PSETA employees and reports
to the Board on all matters relating to operational and
administrative management.

Ms Busisiwe Nake assumed office as Acting CEO in
February 2010 in a caretaker role after the departure

Board member

Ms R Magagula
Mr D Bvuma
Ms BJ Nake

Organisation

IEC
DPSA
PSETA

Representing

Employer
Employer
Act CEO

Equity
status*

BF
BM
BF

Board meetings
2009 2010

Strategic
Planning

Workshops
30
Apr

�

�

-

4
Jun

�

�

-

25
Jul

�

�

-

7,8
Nov

�

�

-

5
Dec

�

�

-

25
Jan

�

�

-

26
Feb

�

�

�

8
Mar

�

�

�

4,5.
5.09

�

�

�

27,28.
2.10

�

�

�
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Corporate Governance (continued)

of Acting CEOs, Mr S Majombozi and Mr Joe Rantete
in July 2009 and January 2010 respectively, to manage
the affairs of the PSETA until the permanent appointment
of a new CEO, which will be concluded in the forthcoming
financial year.

Board induction and orientation

The Board induction process, put in place during the
previous financial year, continued to enhance members'
understanding of the skills development legislative
framework and the nature of business of the PSETA and
related corporate governance principles.

Fiduciary duties of Board members

All Board members are aware of their fiduciary
responsibilities and the need for fair, transparent and
accountable decisions and actions. Board members are
individually and collectively liable for all Board decisions
and actions of omission and commission during their
terms of office.

Board member remuneration

Board members are paid a honorarium of R3 200 for
attending Board meetings and R1 600 for attending
Board Committee meetings and travel costs are
reimbursed at an agreed rate.

Financial management

The Board decides on the funding requirements of the
PSETA and is responsible for financial statements that
fairly present the state of affairs of the PSETA at the
end of each financial year in accordance with the South
African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (GAAP) and the prescribed Standards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) as
indicated in the financial statements to this Report.

Full cognisance has been taken of the requirements of
the PFMA and relevant Treasury regulations. During the

reporting period, the PSETA's procurement and human
resources financial management was conducted and
managed by the DPSA and its financial audit and
preparation of financial statements undertaken by the
Office of the Auditor-General.

Ethics and Code of Conduct

The PSETA values excellence, performance, outputs
and results, people development including equal
opportunity and empowerment, as well as quality
governance and service delivery. These values form the
cornerstone of its interactions with internal and external
stakeholders.

Employees are expected to maintain the highest ethical
standards, ensuring that business practices are employed
in a manner that is beyond reproach. Processes are in
place for transgressions to be investigated at Board
level.

Board members are required to adhere to the Code of
Conduct adopted by the Department of Labour as
approved by its Minister, which reinforces their
commitment to high moral, ethical and legal standards.
The PSETA will prepare its own Code of Conduct for
Board approval in the forthcoming financial year.

Materiality and signatory framework

National Treasury regulations, issued in terms of the
PFMA, require that the PSETA Board compiles a
materiality and signatory framework approved by the
Department of Labour.

 Risk management and internal control

The Board is accountable for risk management and
internal control to identify, assess, mitigate and monitor
all known forms of risk. These include risks pertaining
to political and economic factors, people skills, HIV/AIDS,
technology, reputation, legislation compliance, professional
liability and general operational and financial risks

No of meetings

Board

8

Audit

2

Finance

3

Learnerships
& ETQA

2

Executive
Committee

2

Skills
Planning

7

Human Res &
Legal Affairs

2

Table 2 Record of Board and subcommittee meetings
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Corporate Governance (continued)

PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT   9

including segregation of duties and transaction approval
frameworks.

During the reporting year, the Board approved policies

for Human Resources, Fraud and Risk Management,
Supply Chain Management, Travel, Accommodation and
Sussistence, Non-Current Assets, Financial Procurement
and Cellular Phones.

The Acting Director-General of the Department of Public Service and Administration (right) and the PSETA Vice Chairperson (left) handing over the ISOE
(Institution of Sectoral or Occupational Excellence) grant to representatives from the KwaZulu-Natal Academy.
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This Annual Report
reviews the activities of
the PSETA for the
financial year ended 31
March 2010.

Mandate and business
environment

As the Sector Education
and Training Authority (SETA) for the public service,
the PSETA's mandate is to facilitate, coordinate and
monitor the implementation of the National Skills
Development Strategy (NSDS) in developing transversal
skills for public servants and coordinating the interests
of the sector across line-function SETAs.

Our activities are therefore aligned with the sector-
specific success indicators of the NSDS II, which entered
the final lap of its 2005-2010 five-year period in 2009.
The envisaged five-year period, which ended on 31
March 2010, was extended to 31 March 2011 by the
Minister of Higher Education and Training, Dr Blade
Nzimande, in November 2009 when the responsibility
for skills development and training was transferred from
the Department of Labour to that of Higher Education
and Training.

Strategic priorities and business objectives

Strategically, the PSETA's activities are aligned with
the government's Accelerated and Shared Growth
Initiative for South Africa (ASGISA) and Joint Initiative
for Priority Skills Acquisition (JIPSA), and since 2009

our activities have been guided by the amended Skills
Development Amendment Act, 37 of 2008. This creates
the context within which our activities give effect to the
success indicators of the NSDS II.

The PSETA's strategic plan identified a number of
objectives for the period under review:
• creating a framework for effective governance
• improving stakeholder communication and positioning

the PSETA brand
• improving service delivery
• developing and entrenching strategic partnerships

and relationships, and
• implementing equity principles.

The achievement of these objectives supports our
performance against NSDS II targets and facilitated the
focus during the past financial year to re-establishment
the PSETA as a Schedule 3A public entity.

Our efforts in this regard have been impacted by a
number of challenges, such as a dual ministerial reporting
line, management guardianship by the Department of
Public Service and Administration (DPSA), a financial
model the precludes the receipt of levies and therefore
a source of income and an unstable work environment
as a result of staff uncertainties about the SETA
environment.

During the year we used the opportunities that arose
from our deliberations about autonomy to interact widely
and obtain input from stakeholders and decision-makers
in the public sector about our performance and areas
that need improvement. We readily acknowledged the
gaps and appreciated the open discourse with many
stakeholders, and their encouragement about our future
role in coordinating skills development in the public
service.

A number of highlights

As acting CEO, I am pleased to welcome on board Mr
Mahmood Fadal as the PSETA's new Chairperson. Since
succeeding the outgoing Chairperson, Mr Tahir Maepa,
who resigned in June 2009, Mr Fadal has contributed

Report by the Chief Executive Officer

The PSETA's activities cover all transverse and generic
training and skills development for the public service
sector. These include learnerships, sector skills
planning through workplace skills plans, grant
disbursements, and education and quality assessment
and training. It is also responsible for the quality
assurance of transversal training in all national and
provincial government departments and selected
parastatals.

Ms Busisiwe Juliet Nake,
Acting CEO

The PSETA is inspired by a vision of empowering public service sector
workers with the education, skills and knowledge needed to develop a

workforce that understands the value of service excellence and is willing
to take responsibility for providing the people of South Africa with service

delivery that is uncompromised.
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wisdom and clarity to directing our improvement efforts
and securing the permanent employment of a Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer for the
PSETA. Both these appointments will take effect in the
new financial year. I would also like to thank the outgoing
Chairperson, Mr Tahir Maepa, for his contribution to
the activities of the PSETA.

A highlight for the past year was the areas where we
met or exceeded our NSDS II targets, notably the Skills
Planning Unit who confirmed its track record of meeting
the Department of Labour's annual deadline for
submitting the updated Sector Skills Plan and uploading
the updated Scarce and Critical Skills List onto the
ESSA (Economic Society of SA) system.

Our Learning Programmes Unit exceeded some of their
targets by assisting 3 211 workers against a target of
2 000 to enter learning programmes, with 2 812 workers
against a target of 950 completing learning programmes.

The ETQA Unit ensured that the PSETA retained its
accreditation as the public service ETQA and supported
a fifth ISOE to achieve provider status, meeting its
target of supporting at least five ISOEs in this regard.
The Unit also accredited 33 service providers, developed
24 qualifications and certified 25 moderators, enabling
it to meet its targets in this regard.

Operational overview

The PSETA applied for the renewal of its certificate of
establishment as a SETA during the past financial year
and it is expected that the legislated renewal process
will be concluded by 31 July 2010.

I am pleased to report that during the year under review,
as a result of committed efforts from the ETQA Unit,
our new internal Management Information and Quality
Assessment systems were installed. Significant
improvements are evident in the execution of tasks and
preparation of management reports and staff uptake in
using the systems have exceeded expectations.

Members of our Learning Programmes Unit took the
initiative to host a two-day National Skills Development
Seminar in Bloemfontein in 2009 to share information
about best practice in skills development. This sparked

keen interest from participants in more regular interaction
and resulted in a commitment from the PSETA to
institute this as an annual event in future.

Our regular participation in skills development and
training seminars and forums, including a seminar
hosted by the Department of Correctional Services, and
attendance at Provincial Growth and Development Forums
and the Public Service Trainers Forum, where we actively
contributed to the functioning of the Forum, enabled
us to strengthen relationships and cooperation with
other government-related SETAs, such as the SASSETA
(Safety and Security SETA).

During the past year we also held a series of meetings
to source feedback about a continuous improvement
process for the PSETA's corporate governance practices.
I am appreciative of the commitment and energy with
which the Board subcommittees tackled their respective
portfolios in this regard.

Human resources

The PSETA staff complement is seconded from the
DPSA and their recruitment and remuneration done
through that Department. The employees are seconded
on condition that they provide services related to PSETA
operations only.

Creating competence and capacity remains an ongoing
focus to improve our performance, achieve objectives
and meet the NSDS targets. Our aim is to embed a
culture and work ethic that support ongoing education
and training in line with key result areas. These efforts
will continue in the year ahead and will, I am sure, be
taken forward when the new CEO takes office.

In the forthcoming period, once the work environment
is more stable, the Human Resource subcommittee of
the Board will evaluate staff satisfaction to measure our
success in this area and indicate the need for
improvement.

As at financial yearend our staff complement consisted
of 23 (2009:15) employees as reflected in Table 3.
Skills development included in-house training, short
courses and workshops to supplement skills and
complement knowledge in work-related areas.

Report by the Chief Executive Officer (continued)
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A staff turnover of four during the review period is well
below sector average. The resignations of two Learning
Programme deputy directors and a personal assistant
were due to career advancement opportunities and an
administrator resigned when the contract came to an
end. A Chief Financial Officer and Procurement Director
were appointed on contract.

Financial management overview

The regulations of the National Treasury applied to the
PSETA for the year under review, while its corporate
management functions resided with the DPSA. Grant
funding was supplied through the DPSA and for the
second year running, the PSETA's annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2010 and
accounting policies were audited by the Auditor-General.
This process was facilitated by the financial policies
developed by the Board Finance subcommittee during
the previous financial year.

Government assistance funding for the 2009'10 financial

year amounted to R21 million (2009: R14.7 million),
with R... million approved for the 2010'11 financial year.
The final expenditure for 2009'10 amounted to R…
million (2009: R19 748 240 million).

The DPSA grant funding is mainly applied to employee
compensation and the routine operations of the PSETA.
A new financial model, which makes provision for levy
payments to, among others, initiate skills training projects,
will be implemented when the PSETA starts functioning
as an independent entity. This will remove current
constraints on the PSETA to fulfil its education, skills
development and training mandate.

The activities of the Board's Finance subcommittee and
the contracted full-time services of a Chief Financial
Officer from the DPSA placed our financial management
function on solid ground and will continue until 2011
when the NSDS III will be released and announcements
made about the changes to the PSETA structures.

We remain confident of our relevance to skills development

Position

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Director: Supply Chain Management
Office Manager
Board Secretariat
Executive Personal Assistant
Administrator
Receptionist/Liaison Officer
Logistical Clerk (Driver)
Cleaner
Director: ETQA
ETQA: Administrator
ETQA: Provider Accreditation & Learner A Specialist
ETQA: Provider Accreditation & Learner A Specialist
ETQA: Quality Assurance Specialist
Director: Skills Planning (SP)
SP: Skills Planning Officer
SP: Administrator
SP: Researcher
Director: Learning Programmes (LNS)
LNS: Administrator
LNS: Learnership Coordinator
Total

Number

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
3
1
1
3
2

25

Salary level

13
12
10
8
6
6
4
2

13
6

11
11
11
13
10
6

10
13
6

11

Equity

BM
BF
BF
BF
BF
BF
BM
BF
BM
BF
WM
BM
BM
BM
BM
BF
BM
BF

2BF, BM
BF,BM

Table 3 PSETA (seconded) staff complement as at 31 March 2010

* Black male (BM), White male (WM), Black female (BF), Personal notch (PN)

Report by the Chief Executive Officer (continued)

vacant
vacant
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and training in the public sector and are committed to
contributing to significant improvements in this critical
sector which will result from greatly enhanced levels of
competence and concomitant changes in attitude towards
service delivery.

Stakeholder communication

Communicating about our achievements remains a
challenge, not only for the PSETA, but for SETAs generally.
Effective communication with internal and external
stakeholders, an area of attention in King III, will help
mitigate the prevailing negative perceptions about SETA
performance. A lack of capacity in this area affected our
ability to effectively and sustainably communicate with
all our stakeholders. We will pay specific attention to the
implementation of our Communication Plan in the year
ahead to address the need for regular stakeholder
communication and awareness creation.

Priorities for the year ahead

As we enter the final stretch of being measured against
NSDS II targets at the end of the 2010'11 financial year
and in the run-up to the announcements around the new
SETA landscape in April 2011, our focus will be on
consolidating our efforts to encourage government
departments to spend the mandatory 1% of their human
resource budgets on skills development and training. We
will also focus on developing a skills development policy
with the relevant Department and involving Directors-
General as co-signatories to the Sector Skills Plan to
elevate this salient issue to its rightful place at the top
of Government's agenda of priorities.

Appreciation

I would like to thank our Chairperson and Board members
for their guidance and our stakeholders for their interest
and contribution to our achievements. On behalf of the
PSETA I thank the Ministers of Labour, Public Service
and Administration and Higher Education and Training,
respectively Mr Membathisi Mdladlana, Mr Richard Baloyi
and Dr Blade Nzimande, for their contribution to our

activities and insightful reflections about a future landscape
for South Africa's SETAs. We also appreciate the
cooperation from officials in the respective Departments,
which enabled the PSETA to give effect to its day-to-day
activities.

Appreciation also goes to our suppliers and the PSETA
staff for participation in our activities.

Way forward

Government has prioritised the acceleration and
massification of service delivery, improved governance
and increased job creation across all sectors of the
economy in South Africa. The PSETA is committed to
supporting the achievement of these priorities, specifically
in its role of coordinating skills development and training
in the public sector. Our focus will be on entrenching a
culture across the entire spectrum of public service
workers of taking pride in the delivery of service excellence
as skilled and competent public servants.

I am excited about the permanent appointments of a
CEO and CFO for the PSETA and look forward to welcoming
on board both incumbents as they take up their new
positions in the new financial year.

Board approval

It is the opinion of the PSETA Board that the information
contained in this report fairly reflects the operations and
financial position of the PSETA for the indicated period.

Ms Busisiwe Juliet Nake
Acting CEO
4 August 2009

Report by the Chief Executive Officer (continued)
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The PSETA's performance during the period under review,
aligned with the NSDS II success indicators for the public
service sector, is reflected through the activities

implemented by its Learning Programmes, Skills Planning
and ETQA units, as reported on below:
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Performance Review

The PSETA is mandated, as the SETA responsible for promoting skills development within government
departments and selected parastatals, to develop effectively educated, skilled and knowledgeable public

sector workers that take responsibility for service excellence in the sector they represent.

1.1

1.2

2.3

2.7

2.8

Skills development
supports national and
sectoral growth,
development and equity
priorities

Information on critical
skills widely available
to learners and impact
researched, measured
and communicated wrt
rising entry, completion
and placement of
learners

By March 2010 at least
80% of government
departments to spend
at least 1% of personnel
budgets on training and
impact of training on
service delivery
measured and reported

By March 2010 at least
700 000 workers
achieved at least ABET
Level 4

Assist workers to enter
and complete
programmes leading to
basic entry, inter-
mediate and high-level
scarce skills

Target the same for each
year from 2005-2010
as described under
annual target

Target the same for each
year from 2005-2010
as described under
annual target

Target the same for each
year from 2005-2010
as described under
annual target

Target the same for each
year from 2005-2010
as described under
annual target

At least 125 000
workers assisted to enter
and 50% to successfully
complete programmes,
incl learnerships and
apprenticeships, leading
to basic entry,
intermediate and high
level scarce skills, and
impact of assistance
measured

Update Sector Skills
Plan (SSP) with
qualitative content
through the
identification of skills
gaps and development
requirements

• Upload Scarce and
Critical Skills List

• Train 180 Skills
Development
Facilitators (SDFs) on
use of list

At least 117
government
departments and
legislatures to use at
least 1% of personnel
budget for training

2 500 workers entered
ABET Levels 1-4

Assisted 2 000 workers
to enter learning
programmes and 950
workers to have
completed learning
programmes

SSP updated,
developed, signed-off
by Chairperson, CEO
and DPSA D-G and
submitted to DoL on 31
August 2009

Scarce and Critical
Skills List presented to
132 SDFs in six
Provinces

A total of 95
departments out of a
possible 145
departments submitted
the data - a return rate
of 70.3% - and all 95
used at least 1% of
personnel budget on
training

• 105 workers qualified
• 1 163 workers

registered

• 544 workers assisted
with bursaries

• 3 211 workers entered
programmes

• 2 812 workers
completed
programmes

Met target

Training of SDFs to be
addressed through
continuous workshops
for the remaining
Provinces

Target 70%
accomplished;
improvement will be
addressed in the next
financial year

Target 45%
accomplished,
improvement will be
addressed in the next
financial year

Target met and
exceeded

NSDS II success
indicators

1 Prioritising and communicating critical skills for sustainable growth, development and equity

Sector target
2005-2010

PSETA target
2009-2010

Performance as at 31
March 2010

Variance
explained

2 Promoting and accelerating quality training for all in the workplace

Table 4 Performance against NSDS II success indicators
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In the year ahead, significant emphasis will be placed
on addressing the areas indicated in the performance
review Table where the PSETA did not meet its targets
for the reporting period. Priority will also be given to

assisting designated groups, including new entrants, with
grants for work-integrated learning and work-based
programmes, as well as improving the quality and relevance
of skills development in the public sector.

PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT  15

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.3

Increase number of
unemployed and
students entering and
completing learnerships
and apprenticeships for
basic entry,
intermediate and high-
level scarce skills

Assist learners in critical
skills programmes
covered by sector
agreements with FET
and HET institutions to
gain work experience
locally or abroad

Establish Institutes of
Sectoral or
Occupational
Excellence (ISOEs)
within public and
private institutions and
through Public-Private
Partnerships (PPPs)

Improved SETA service
delivery and NQF
implementation as
required by SAQA

At least 125 000
unemployed assisted to
enter land at least 50%
to successfully
complete programmes,
incl learnerships and
apprenticeships,
leading to basic entry,
intermediate and high
level scarce skills, and
impact of assistance
measured

Assist 100% of learners
in critical skills
programmes covered as
indicated assisted to
gain work experience,
of whom at least 70%
to find placement in
employment or self-
employment

By March 2010 each
SETA to recognise and
support five ISOEs in
public institutions and
through PPPs, with wide
geographic spread to
attain critical skills

Four provider
institutions accredited
to manage service
delivery for each
Province

At least 1 500
unemployed workers
enrolled and 50%
successfully completed
learning programmes for
basic entry,
intermediate and high-
level scarce skills

175 learners assisted
to gain work place
experience and 70% to
find placement in
employment or self-
employment

Support two ISOEs
nationally through PPPs

Identify four provider
institutions in each
Province

• 247 unemployed
learners entered
learning programmes

• 150 unemployed
learners completed
internships and
bursaries

• 0 learners assisted
with grants to gain
work place experience

• 3 ISOEs identified
and supported

• 33 accredited service
providers

• 24 qualifications
developed

• 25 moderators
certified

Target 20%
accomplished,
improvement will be
addressed in the next
financial year

Prioritised in the event
that the SLA and targets
are properly set and
relevant to PSETA

Exceeded the target by
1

Met target

NSDS II success
indicators

Sector target
2005-2010

PSETA target
2009-2010

Performance as at 31
March 2010

Variance
explained

4 Assisting designated groups, including new entrants, to participate in accredited work-integrated learning and work-based
programmes to acquire critical skills to enter the labour market and self-employment

5 Improving the quality and relevance of the provision of skills development

Key to abbreviations
ABET: Adult Basic Education and Training; DG: Director-General; DoL: Department of Labour; DPSA: Department of Public Service
and Administration; FET: Further Education and Training; HET: Higher Education and Training; NQF: National Qualifications
Framework; SAQA: South African Qualifications Authority

Performance Review (continued)
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The activities of the
Learning Programmes
Unit give effect to:
• identifying workplaces
   for practical work
   experience
• supporting the
   development of
   learning materials
• improving the

facilitation of learning
• assisting in the conclusion of learnership agreements
• registering and managing learnership agreements,

and
• supporting, monitoring and evaluating the

implementation of learnerships.

Our continued interaction with employers and human
resource representatives in government departments and
at parastatals continued to deliver positive results,

including an increase in the use of learnerships registered
with and outside the PSETA.

During the year under review we focused our activities
on achieving a number of objectives to support the NSDS
success indicators as aligned with the strategic priorities
of the PSETA tabulated below:

Key Initiatives: Learning Programmes

Learning Programmes highlights
• Exceeded NSDS targets for enrolling workers in

learnerships and workers completing learnerships
with 3 152 against 2 000 and 2 812 against
1 000 respectively

• Submitted NSF applications to fund 1 700
unemployed learners

• Developed three learning frameworks for three
learnerships

• Revised the learning agreement registration
process and provided government departments
with an induction framework.

Objectives

Develop and register learning programmes
and facilitate, monitor and evaluate
implementation by government
departments and parastatals

Facilitate compliance with requisite
prescripts to implement and improve the
reporting of learning programmes

Performance

• Developed and registered the following learnerships for registration:
• Governance and Administration Level 5
• Home Affairs Services: Refugee Services Level 5
• Home Affairs Services: Immigration Services Level 5
• Public Finance Management & Administration Level 5
• Reregistered Public Administration Level 3 against a revised qualification
• This area is also supported by a whole host of Skills Programmes consisting of a

group of unit standards to provide functional competence
• Developed learning frameworks aimed at guiding both learner and service provider

during implementation for Public Administration Level 3 and Public Finance
Management Level 5

• Developed implementation guidelines
• Conducted series of induction sessions in Provinces to enable completion of

learnership agreements prior to implementation:
• Limpopo - Office of the Premier
• Free State - Department of Public Works, and Welfare and Social Development
• National Department - Department of Public Works, and regional offices in various

provinces
• North West - Department of Public Works
• Mpumalanga - Department of Arts and Culture
• Advised government departments of their intended implementation
• Participated in Provincial forums
• Developed and distributed workplace readiness checklist

Table 5 Performance against objectives 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Ms Mamello Mahomed,
Learnership Manager.

The primary objective of the Learning Programmes Unit is to facilitate and
manage the development and implementation of learning programmes for
the public sector. This is achieved through partnerships with stakeholders

in the implementation, monitoring and evaluation of formal learning
programmes.
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Some highlights and achievements

The past reporting year saw a number of highlights and
achievements. We conducted a series of Provincial
consultation workshops in April 2009 to identify needs
for support to implement their learning programmes, as
well as interventions to meet sector targets.

Feedback clearly indicated that whilst departments may
have had plans in place to implement learning
programmes, many experienced difficulties in doing so.
This was supported by the low submission rate of quarterly
monitoring reports from departments. The information

sourced was used to design further levels of engagement
with these stakeholders and informed the implementation
of our 2009'10 stakeholder support plan. It was also an
indication of an expected shortfall in meeting the sector
target for the submission of reports for the year under
review.

We hosted a two-day National Skills Development Seminar
in Bloemfontein from 29-30 June 2009. The seminar
was well attended by representatives from government
departments in all nine Provinces. The purpose of the
seminar was to share information about current
developments and best practice in skills development,

PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT  17

Objectives

Promote registered learning programmes

• Promote the quality implementation of
learning programmes

• Conclude agreements with line function
SETAs to conduct quality audits

• Ensure compliance with quality
assurance in implementing cross -SETA
learnerships

Facilitate the implementation of
learnerships to meet sector targets and
monitor the submission of Quarterly
Monitoring Reports

Manage registered learning agreements

Performance

• Conducted stakeholder workshops jointly with the PSETA Skills Planning Unit
• Participated in the KZN ABET Indaba and the DPSA review of the internship

framework
• Developed and distributed Learning Programme brochures
• Participated in a number of exhibitions
• Developed three learning frameworks for three learnerships
• Issued communiqués about registered learnerships and skills programmes
• Updated Learning Programme guidelines and communicated availability to stakeholders
• Collaborated with DPSA and the National Treasury to improve stakeholder reporting

• Monitoring and evaluation
• Developed monitoring procedures in the form of a self- assessment checklist to

allow desktop assessment before verifications
• Entered into MoUs with related ETQAs for support in the implementation of

learnerships
• Conducted a stakeholder seminar in Bloemfontein to advise participant s about

current developments and share best practice in skills development

• Pursued and secured partnerships with government departments to take advantage
of the NSF funding window

• Submitted an application to NSF to fund 1 700 unemployed learners for learnerships
and 300 for internships in scarce and critical skills within the public sector for
implementation in partnership with government departments - the application was
not approved by the NSF

• Revised the quarterly monitoring report and held stakeholders workshops
• 3 211 workers entered into learning programmes
• 2 812 workers completed learning programmes

• Revised the learning agreement registration process to include compulsory induction,
which led to the signing of agreements by the relevant parties and provided government
departments with an induction framework

• Improved the reporting process to collect information needed to track, complete
and evaluate implemented programmes

• Held stakeholders workshops on the revised process
• Registered 137 learnership entries and received 58 completion certificates
• Registered 346 internships/experiential learning

Key Initiatives: Learning Programmes (continued)

Key to abbreviations
ABET: Adult Basic Education and Training; DPSA: Department of Public Service and Administration; KZN: KwaZulu-Natal; MoUs:
Memoranda of Understanding; NSF: National Skills Fund
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which included a review of the amended Skills
Development Act and the implications of implementing
learning programmes.

The Free State Department of Education, recognised for
providing the highest number of unemployed learners
with learnerships, shared their experience of this
achievement. The seminar sparked a need for more regular
interaction and the PSETA committed itself to hosting
annual seminars as a platform for Provinces to share
experiences and learn from one another.

The Learning Programmes Unit also coordinated two
consultation sessions with stakeholder to discuss the re-
establishment of the PSETA. These events afforded
stakeholders opportunities to reflect on our performance
over the past five years, as well as the PSETA's future
role. The positive feedback supported our application for
re-establishment for the next five years.

We strengthened relationships and cooperation with other
government-related SETAs, such as the SASSETA (Safety
and Security SETA,) by participating in the Department of
Correctional Services' seminar and the Public Service
Trainers Forum, where we accepted the role of coordinating
the activities of Government-related SETAs and actively
contributed to the functioning of the Forum.

The PSETA is also a member of a number of Provincial
Growth and Development Forums and as such we participated
in forum activities in Limpopo, North West and Mpumalanga.

Implementation of Learning Programmes

The following Tables depict the registered agreements for
the implementation of learnerships during the year under
review, performance against NSDS targets and the
submission rate by departments of quarterly monitoring
reports:

Table 6 Registered agreements for implementation of learnerships

Province

North West
National
National
National
Gauteng
Free State
Limpopo

Department

Treasury
International Relations
Communications
Public Works
Human Settlement
Social Development
Office of the Premier

Learnership title

Internal Audit Technician
Business Administration

Business Administration
Public Administration
Social Auxiliary
Internal Audit Technician

Learners

20
8

20
16
50
20

Table 7 Performance against NSDS II targets

Success Indicator

2.7 ABET
2.8 Workers
4.1 Workplace experience
4.2 Experiential learning

Target

2 500
2 000
1 500

100

Achievement

1 163
3 152

247
0

Target

1 000
1 000
1 030

75

Achievement

105
2 812

146
0

Entries Completions

Key Initiatives: Learning Programmes (continued)
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While the Learning Programmes Unit met and exceeded
some of its targets, performance against others did not
meet expectations. This was mainly due to challenges in
obtaining learnership reports from stakeholders and a
shortage of staff to monitor implementation and progress
against set targets by government departments.

Way forward

In the year ahead, the PSETA Learning Programmes Unit
will focus on developing learning programmes for national
certificates in Public Finance (Oversight and

Accountability, SAQA ID 64670) and Public Administration
(SAQA ID 57804). We will give priority to further
stakeholder consultation and continue to host the annual
seminar on skills development, as well as specific
workshops for the Learning Programmes of the government-
related SETAs.

We will also endeavour to improve the submission rate
of quarterly monitoring reports by departments by creating
a template for electronic submission, as well as improve
our performance in the areas of ABET,
internships/experiential learning and learnerships.

Table 8 Submission rate for Quarterly Monitoring Reports from Departments

Province

National
Eastern Cape
Free State
Gauteng
KwaZulu-Natal
Limpopo
Mpumalanga
Northern Cape
North West
Western Cape

No of departments

41
12
11
12
14
11
12
12
11
11

Submitted

7
0
0
9
4
1
9
1
5
8

Rate (%)

23
0
0

19
7
2

19
2

11
18

Key Initiatives: Learning Programmes (continued)

Graduates and facilitators at the Gauteng Department of Finance graduation ceremony.
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The updated plans are
submitted to the
Department of Labour as
input to the development
of national skills
strategies.

The critical functions of
the Skills Planning Unit
are to:

• conduct research to identify scarce and critical skills
needs of the public sector

• conduct labour market analysis to forecast trends for
sector profiling and skills supply and demand

• provide skills planning support for the sector and
benchmark and conduct impact studies of skills
development activities

• develop a Sector Skills Plan and Career Guide and
annually update both

• provide career guidance in the sector through a Sector
Career Guide based on labour market needs and
scarce and critical skills

• disseminate information on scarce and critical skills
to stakeholders

• ensure the establishment, induction and effective
functioning of training committees in the public
service

• provide training to skills development facilitators
(SDFs) on core unit standards relevant to skills
development, and

• develop tools and guideline documents to assist SDFs.

During the 2009'10 reporting period, the Unit sought to
achieve the following business objectives to support the
achievement of its NSDS targets:
• update the SSP from the Workplace Skills Plans

(WSPs)
• manage and coordinate the development and

submission of WSPs and Annual Training Reports
(ATRs) to the PSETA

• develop the five-year SSP and Sector Career Guide
for the 2011'2016 cycle

• develop the SSP module of the Management
Information System (MIS) to submit WSPs and ARTs
online

• present capacity building workshops for SDFs and
Training Committees

• encourage and monitor government departments to
invest 1% of their personnel budgets in training and
skills development

• meet the SETA Service Level Agreement target against
the NSDS targets, and

• render ongoing support to departments.

Some highlights

Some of our highlights during the reporting period included
the receipt of 92 WSPs and ATRs and successfully
introducing and implementing the MIS for the online
development and submission of WSPs and ATRs, as well
as training SDFs in the use electronic interface.

We also successfully updated the SSP and uploaded the
Scarce and Critical Skills List on the ESSA (Economic
Society of SA) system and trained SDFs on the Organising
Framework for Occupations (OFOs) and the new Critical
and Scarce Skills List for the sector. In addition, feedback
sessions were conducted to provide government
departments with response and evaluation reports on the
WSPs. The Skills Planning Unit also participated in the
skills development seminars of the National Department
of Social Development and SAQA's Consultative Forum
for the development of a curriculum for Career Guidance
Practitioners.

Key Initiatives: Skills Planning

Skills Planning highlights
• Successfully updated and submitted Sector Skills

Plan to Department of Labour
• Trained 132 Skills Development Facilitators on

the use of the Sector Career Guide and Scarce
and Critical Skills List in six Provinces

• Presented workshops to train SDFs to use Sector
Career Guide Scarce and Critical Skills List and
Management Information System

• Participated in numerous meetings and forums
as well as skills development seminars.

Mr Daniel Makhetha,
Skills Planning Manager.

A SETA's skills planning activities are guided by its Sector Skills Plan. These
plans are aligned with the current cycle of the National Skills Development

Strategy (NSDS II) and are updated annually to reflect the structural,
economic and social changes in the SETA sectors.
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Achievements against objectives

Sector Skills Plan updated

The 92 WSPs received for the 2009'10 financial year
were analysed and evaluated to identify scarce and critical
skills needs for the sector and complete the annual
update of the Sector Skills Plan (SSP) with all the
statistical data sourced from the PERSAL system. We
devoted time and effort to ensure that the WSPs were
complete, authentic and well-researched from skills
audits and training needs analyses, as well as from
workshops conducted in the past two years. This helped
to improve the quality of information captured in WSPs
and subsequently, the SSP update.

The Sector Skills Plan was signed off by the PSETA
Board Chairperson and the Director-General of the DPSA
and submitted to the Department of Higher Education
on the 31 August 2009 in response to submission
timelines.

To further improve the quality of information in the SSP
update, the Unit will conduct follow-up workshops other
than the WSPs, to corroborate and triangulate WSP
information.

Table 9 reflects the list of received WSPs and ATRs for
the reporting period.

Scarce and critical skills list

A list of Scarce and Critical Skills for the Public Sector
was also compiled from WSPs and that information was
used to update Chapter 4 in the SSP update. The
information was then uploaded on the Employment
Services South Africa (ESSA) system of the Department
of Labour, which is consolidated with information from
other SETAs to compile the Annual National Scarce Skills
List.

Sector Career Guide

The Sector Career Guide, like the Sector Skills Plan, is
developed to comply with the requirements of the NSDS
to profile scarce and critical skills needs and detail career
paths and opportunities in the public service sector. The
identified scarce and critical skills which update Chapter
4 of the SSP are uploaded as input to updating the

Sector Career Guide. This information was also
disseminated to SDFs for further distribution at various
capacity development workshops. The ultimate targeted
audiences of the career guide are learners at schools and
tertiary institutions, unemployed graduates and public
servants, to sensitise them about career development
paths available in the public sector.

Preparing for the development of the five-year Sector
Skills Plan (2011'16)

The Sector Skills Plan (SSP) details skills development
for a five-year period and is developed and updated by
each SETA annually and submitted to the coordinating
national Department of Labour. In the forthcoming year
the SSP will be submitted to the Department of Higher
Education and Training. The plan is aimed at identifying
skills needs (shortages and gaps) in each economic
sector, as well as constraints to the effective development
and utilisation of such skills in relation to the objectives
of the NSDS, the National Human Resource Development
Strategy and other relevant sector strategies. The annual
update of the SSP incorporates information from annually
submitted WPSs and further research to align information
with changes that might have occurred in the sector post
the previous submission, and also signals and sensitises
education and training providers about the sector skills
needs.

Preparation for the development of the SSP and the
Sector Career Guide have been completed and the
submission process started.

Management Information System

One of the Quality Assurance Requirements of SAQA is
that each SETA must develop a Management Information
System (MIS). The MIS system is an online interface
that allows for real-time interaction between SDFs and
the PSETA, and is critical for the realisation of the
organisation's business goals. The system allows SDFs
to capture and upload and submit their WSPs/ ATRs
online.

To comply with this requirement, the PSETAs Skills
Planning and ETQA Units initiated the process of
developing the MIS and contracted Deloitte and Touche
to develop and maintain the system. All internal users
were trained to use the system.

Key Initiatives: Skills Planning (continued)
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Feedback workshops for SDFs

Workshops were again conducted in all provincial and
national departments to provide SDFs with feedback
about their WSPs/ATRs. The workshops took place
between September and November 2009.
The aim was to provide feedback on:
• WSP/ATR submission rates
• WSP/ATR evaluation report
• Sector Scarce and Critical Skills lists
• Quality of content
• Consolidated training report
• The use of a simplified template for WSP/ATR

development
• Report on government expenditure on skills

development
• Stakeholder involvement.
The workshops also sought to clarify the Organising
Framework for Occupations (OFO) to the SDFs for ease
of use in the WSP/ATR development process.

This information was communicated to the SDFs and
should inform the occupational classifications in the
WSPs submitted. Table 11 reflects a breakdown of
workshops according to national and provincial
departments.

MIS workshops

The second round of workshops involved the introduction
of the MIS to the SDFs in preparation for the online
development and submission of their WSPs/ATRs for
the period under review.

These workshops were mostly successful, and although
the use of the system was not as smooth and effective
as intended, most of the SDFs managed to develop and
submit their reports online (breakdown of departments,
legislatures and parastatals trained on the MIS). Table
2 reflects attendance at these workshops.

Training Committees

 Part of the Skills Planning Unit's mandate is to ensure
that departments, legislatures and parastatals have
effectively functioning training committees. An analysis
of the previous year's Annual Training Reports (ARTs)
shows that all the departments, legislatures and
parastatals have functioning training committees.
Furthermore, the Training Committees support their

department's provision of NQF-aligned training. There
is a need, however, for them to be further capacitated
to better understand their roles.

As a result, we are planning to build the capacity of
these committees for the provision of effective skills
development planning, implementation and support
within departments and will be conducting a training
needs analysis to identify the training needs of the
committee members before starting with the capacity
building sessions for them. The terms of reference for
the procurement of a service provider to assist in this
regard is underway.

Utilisation of the human resource budgets for training

The Skills Development Act and the NSDS II, Success
Indicator 2.3, emphasises that government departments
should set aside at least 1% of their total personnel
budget for skills development. The Skills Planning Unit
is mandated to monitor the implementation of this and
had set itself a target of encouraging at least 90
government departments to do so. At the end of the
reporting period, 95 of the 145 departments had
complied.

Supporting departments as required

We also provided support to departments on an ongoing
basis upon request, through seminars, conferences and
workshops. One such a presentation was done to the

The OFO is a skills-based coded classification system
for all occupations and jobs in the South African
labour market. It also defines these occupations
according to their attributes, and groups them on
the basis of similarity (skill level and skill
specialisation) into successively broader categories
or hierarchical levels for statistical and other types
of analysis. The structure of the OFO has six
hierarchical levels: Major Group, Sub-major Group,
Minor Group, Unit Group, Occupation, as well the
Occupations and alternative titles, which is the last
level that specify the specialisation area of the
occupational category, and is very useful when
depicting or describing scarce and critical skills. The
OFO codes are used in the WSPs to identify the
occupational categories and the shortages within
those categories.
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National Department of Social Development to assist
with the development of a skills plan for their Community
Development Practitioners.

The Unit received invitations from a number of provincial
and national departments to participate in seminars in
the coming financial year.

Quarterly Achievement Reports against the NSDSII

The Unit is also responsible for the quarterly reporting
of the PSETA's achievements against NSDSII targets,
as set out in the SETA's SLA with the Department of
Higher Education. To achieve this, Quarterly Monitoring
Reports received from various departments are
consolidated into a Schedule 2B Report for submission
to the Department at the end of each quarter. The
Department of Higher Education samples information
for validation and verification within ten working days
after receiving the SETA's report.

With effect from 1 April 2010 this function will fall
under the PSETA's Learning Programmes Unit.

Challenges

The following are some of the impediments that hinders
the unit from effectively delivering on its mandate:
• There are no incentive or enforcement mechanisms

in the PSETA to ensure that government departments
comply fully with the NSDS. As a result, many
departments submit their WSPs very late long after
the closing date of 30 June 2010.

• Capacity for professional skills development planning
is insufficient in government departments. This
results in poor WSPs in some cases.

• There is a high labour turnover rate of Skills
Development facilitators in the Public service resulting
in lack of continuity. The reason often cited for this
high turnover rate is that SDFs are not well supported
by their supervisors.

Table 9 Work Skills Plans (WSPs) and Annual Training Reports (ATRs) received for the year ended 31 March 2010

National and Provincial Departments

National Departments
Eastern Cape
Free State
Gauteng
KwaZulu-Natal
Limpopo
Mpumalanga
North West
Northern Cape
Western Cape
Total

WSPs/ATRs expected

41
12
11
11
14
11
12
11
12
11

145

WSPs/ATRs submitted

21
3
5
8

10
11
11

7
5

11
92

Return rate (%)

51.2
25.0
45.5
72.7
71.4

100.0
91.7
63.6
41.7

100.0
63.4

Table 10 Summary of reports from government departments on 1% of personnel budget spent on training and skills
development

Province

National government
Eastern Cape
Free State
Gauteng
KwaZulu-Natal
Limpopo
Mpumalanga
North West
Northern Cape
Western Cape

Reports received

41
12
11
11
14
11
12
11
12
11

Key Initiatives: Skills Planning (continued)
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Province

Western Cape
Northern Cape
Limpopo
Mpumalanga
Free State
North West
KwaZulu-Natal
Total attendees

Attendees

27
13
12
28
18
22
25

145

Workshop date

20-21August 2009
17-18 September 2009
22-23 September 2009

15-16 October 2009
19-20 October 2009
21-22 October 2009
16 November 2009

Table 11 Summary of SDF attendance at MIS workshops

Province

National group 1
National group 2
Eastern Cape
Free State
Gauteng
KwaZulu-Natal
Limpopo
Mpumalanga
North West
Northern Cape
Legislature
National follow-up 1
National follow-up 2
North West follow-up
Eastern Cape follow-up
Total trained on MIS

Attendees

27
19
20
13
23
32
26
26
22
14
17
11
26
20
16

334

Workshop date

1-2 March 2010
23-24 March 2010

8-9 March 2010
15-16 April 2009

22-23 February 2010
12-13 April 2009
19-20 April 2009

25-26 March 2010
15-16 March 2010
18 -19 March 2010

29-30 April 2009
23 June 2009

4 June 2009
24 June 2009
14 June 2009

Way forward

During the year ahead, our focus will be on increasing the
Unit's capacity to increase our effectiveness in assessing
and monitoring skills development planning performance
in the public sector.

This will allow us to increase our interaction with and

support to government departments, training committees,
legislatures and especially parastatals. A quick review will
be done to upgrade the MIS for easier use during the next
submission cycle.

We will also upgrade the annual five-year SSP, develop a
new Career Guide and improve the dissemination of the
career-based information to the intended target audiences.

Key Initiatives: Skills Planning (continued)
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The ETQA Unit
contributes to the
attainment of the
PSETA's mission and key
objectives of bridging the
skills gap and creating a
skilled workforce to meet
the social development
needs of all South
Africans.

The purpose of the ETQA Unit is to:
• maintain accreditation with the South African

Qualifications Authority (SAQA) as an Education and
Training Quality Assurance (ETQA)

• accredit training providers to build capacity for the
implementation of the Human Resources and Skills
Development Strategies in the public service sector

• monitor providers to maintain the quality of learning
provision through structured monitoring processes
and procedures that support trend analysis, tracking
systems and effective communication reports

• ensure that processes are followed accurately with
no deviation that could comprise the validity of
certificates issued by the PSETA

• facilitate the assessment and moderation system to
ensure that assessments are integrated and promote
progression, portability and articulation, as well as
accommodate conditions of recognition of prior learning

• implement a PSETA management information system
(MIS) to document and record all data relevant to
PSETA functions to ensure accurate operational
information and compliance with the National Learner
Record Database (NLRD)

• maintain an acceptable integrated quality management
system (QMS) based on approved management
policies, processes and procedures to meet customer
needs effectively, efficiently and economically and
host organisational policies and procedures

• promote the quality of learning delivery amongst
providers through the sharing of best practice and
benchmarking through research, development,
advocacy and stakeholders forums

• enter in Memoranda of Understanding (MoU) to
promote access for beneficiaries from related sectors
to avoid unnecessary duplication and encroachment

on quality assurance functions or responsibilities by
other parties, and

• register assessors and moderators to ensure that
learner achievements are credible, authentic and
valid.

For the year under review our business objectives were to:

Strategic projects
• Address areas of underperformance identified during

the SAQA Audit
• Source a minimum of 45 new emerging training

providers through a cooperative strategy.

Accredit providers
• Revise accreditation and monitoring policies and

procedures
• Train 30 learning programme evaluators/auditors to

work for the SETA
• Implement a measurement and impact analysis report
• Revise internal audit reports as a measurement against

targets.

Certify constituent learners and training providers
• Review the framework for issuing certificates
• Expedite the process of certification with easy retrieval

and recording information and certificates data.

Facilitate assessments
• Improve sector assessment and moderation practices
• Develop verification tools
• Record verification reports and use these to improve

quality and best practices.

Key Initiatives: ETQA

Mr Zamo Khuzwayo,
ETQA Manager.

The PSETA ETQA is a SAQA-accredited quality assuror for the public service
sector, responsible for the monitoring and auditing of learning and competence

against NQF-registered national standards.

ETQA highlights
• Successful SAQA audit and recertification of

PSETA as ETQA for the public service sector
• Identified and assisted fifth Institute of Sectoral

or Occupational Excellence (ISOE) to achieve
strategic provider status

• Implemented a new Management Information
System for the PSETA

• Accredited sectoral training providers for the
Department of Home Affairs and Statistics SA
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Database management
• Review and audit existing database to comply with

new Management Information System (MIS)
• Implement MIS complaint with SAQA NLRD.

Provider monitoring
• Provide evidence of effective implementation of

monitoring tool
• Develop action plan to conduct trend analysis
• Develop mechanism to provide feedback to relevant

stakeholders.

Quality Management System (QMS)
• Identify, develop and implement a QMS compliant

with SAQA requirements and internationally accepted.

Memoranda of Understanding (MoU)
• Revise, review, implement and maintain a new MoU

document
• Identify relevant ETQAs, schedule and conduct MoU

review meetings
• Review and implement signed MoUs with relevant

ETQAs
• Measure impact, adverse effects and deviation in

terms of non-compliance or disagreements.

Promote quality
• Develop and implement a quality promotion

communication strategy
• Revise resources to promote quality
• Develop ISOE strategy and encourage participation

by providers
• Measure the impact of the ETQA quality assurance

to accredit providers
• Measure the effectiveness of the ETQA accreditation

processes.

Unit standard and qualification design
• Revise unit standard and qualification development

strategy with clear objectives
• Develop positioning strategy for PSETA ETQA aligned

with new NQF Act
• Conduct a technical study to identify organised

occupations and explore potential for a professional
body as a certification partner for PSETA ETQA

• Partner with Palama to develop the Qualifications
Framework for the public service sector.

Recognition of prior learning (RPL)
• Finalise the public sector RPL policy for approval by

the Minister
• Implement an RPL pilot project to measure PSETA

RPL effectiveness against PSETA registered
qualifications.

Register assessors and moderators
• Revise assessor and moderator registration policy
• Implement assessor and moderator Code of Conduct
• Conduct assessor and moderator workshops.

Some highlights and achievements

During the year under review, we implemented the new
integrated Management Information System and achieved
full accreditation status as an ETQA for the public service
sector. We also accredited strategic sectoral training
providers for the Department of Home Affairs Learning
Centre and the Official Statistics Academy for Statistics
SA.

The ETQA Unit was restructured to optimise human
resources and streamline its operations. We also assisted
a fifth Institute of Sectoral and/or Occupational Excellence
(ISOE) to achieve strategic provider status aligned with
the overall NSDS II (2005-2010) target of five ISOEs
before the end of 31 March 2010.

Performance against objectives

During the review period, the ETQA Unit worked towards
closing the performance gaps identified in the May 2008
SAQA performance audit, to submit the necessary evidence
that critical projects were being implemented before the
expiry of our provisional accreditation in September 2009.

Among others, the audit had identified the need for
SAQA-approved management information and quality
management systems for daily use by staff as well as
systems to monitor accredited providers and assess the
impact of their services, and a need to promote PSETA
activities.

The NQF principles of portability, progression and
articulation renders the learning system a credit
accumulation system. The NQF therefore requires
SETA ETQAs to assess the registration of assessors,
moderators and verifiers to ensure that best practice
is used at all times.

Key Initiatives: ETQA (continued)
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In response, the ETQA Unit with the Skills Planning
Unit, launched an integrated Management Information
System for the PSETA in January 2010, which is fully
compliant with the SAQA National Learner Records
Database (NRLD) and ETQA operations requirements.
The system enables the electronic submission of
Workplace Skills Plans and the management of
learnership agreements and has revitalised the day-
to-day operations of the PSETA.

Also in January 2010, the ETQA Unit assisted the
fifth ISOE to achieve strategic provider status and met
the overall NSDS II (2005-2010) target of five ISOEs
before financial yearend.

Accreditation decisions for 11 training providers were
finalised, while four requested and were granted an
extension to the scope of their programme offerings.
This brings the total training providers accredited
under the PSETA's quality assurance to 41, seven
from other ETQAs and 31 under the PSETAs primary
scope. An additional five training providers were
granted an extension of scope to their existing
programme offerings.

The ETQA also conducted monitoring site visits at eight
training providers as part of its mandatory maintenance
of accredited providers. While much has been achieved,
more needs to be done to address the capacity of
accredited providers required to implement the Public
Service Human Resources Development Strategy.

During the period under review, the ETQA registered
30 constituent assessors and 15 moderators. This
relatively low number can be attributed to the
constrained capacity within the ETQA Unit to deal with
the migration between the old and new MIS, creating
a backlog which was only resolved after financial
yearend. Overall, a total of 379 constituent assessors
and 45 moderators have been registered.

The Joint Implementation Plan (JIP) between Palama
and SAQA resulted in the registration of 80 new unit
standards and government's line function qualifications
were developed and registered. The PSETA ETQA issued
a total of 431 of these, comprising 107 certificates of
competence and 324 statements of results against
PSETA qualifications and unit standards to learners
in the following constituencies:

Full qualification

Diploma in Diplomacy
National Certificate in Mission Administration
(NQF Level 5)
Advanced Certificate in Mission Administration
(NQF Level 6)
National Certificate in Public Administration
(NQF Level 3)

Unit standards/Skills programmes

• Financial Management
• Supply Chain Management
• Supervisor Courses
• Project Management in the Public Service
Gender mainstreaming

Constituency

Department of International Relations and Cooperation
Department of International Relations and Cooperation

Department of International Relations and Cooperation

Limpopo: Department of Roads and Transport
Department of Social Development
Department of Minerals and Energy

Constituency

Various national and provincial public service departments and state
entities including the Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA)

Various national and provincial public service departments through
Palama

Learners

36
23

7

20
11
10

Learners

215

109

At financial yearend, 2 649 learners were enrolled in
the PSETA qualifications and skills programmes. This
included 218 learners enrolled against full
qualifications, of which 27 are benefitting from

recognition of prior learning in a project funded by
the Limpopo Department of Roads and Transport. The
remaining 2 431 are learners on credit bearing skills
programmes.

Key Initiatives: ETQA (continued)
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Full qualification

Diploma in Diplomacy and Mission Administration
National Certificate in Public Administration
(NQF Level 3)
Further Education and Training Certificate (FETC)
in Public Administration (NQF Level 4)

Unit standards/Skills programmes

• Financial Management
• Supply Chain Management
• Supervisor Courses
• Project Management in the Public Service
Gender mainstreaming

Anti-corruption

Financial Management

Manage and apply protocol and etiquette in a
diplomatic context
Customer care in the Public Service
Teambuilding and supervisory skills programme

Constituency

Department of International Relations and Cooperation
Department of Police

Department of Police

Constituency

Various national and provincial public service departments and
state entities including the Development Bank of Southern Africa
(DBSA)

Various national and provincial public service departments through
Palama
Department of Trade and Industry
Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs
Department of International Relations and Cooperation
Free State Department of Health
Free State Department of Education
Palama, Department of Defense and Gauteng office of the Premier

Development Bank of Southern Africa
Department of International Relations and Cooperation

Learners

106
170

142

Learners

1 928

109

13
23
39
25
90
64

88
52

Nine qualifications were added to the PSETA quality assurance scope between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010,
as follows:

Qual ID

57824
58346

66869
57804
57805
50585
50583
57827
57897

Title

Further Education and Training Certificate in Public Administration
Further Education and Training Certificate in Public Administration Management
(Learning programme ID 57712)
National Certificate in Home Affairs Services
National Certificate in Public Administration
National Certificate in Public Sector Employment and Skills Development Practices
National Certificate in Public Service Communication
National Certificate in Public Service Communication
National Diploma in Public Administration
National Diploma in Public Administration (Learning programme ID 64760)

Credits

146
150

120
157
160
129
120
260
240

NQF Level

Level 4
Level 4

Level 5
Level 3
Level 5
Level 6
Level 5
Level 7
Level 6

A total of 80 unit standards were registered and added to the PSETA's quality assurance scope, as reflected below:

Unit/Std ID

10301
110052
110053
110055
110057
110058

Title

Complete a research assignment
Understand and apply theories and principles of transformative development practice
Conduct a basic community needs assessment
Facilitate learning in development practice
Conduct a self-evaluation of own progress and development
Demonstrate a critical understanding of theories and principles of transformative development
practice

Level

Level 6
Level 4
Level 4
Level 4
Level 4
Level 5

Credits

20
12
12
14

2
8

Key Initiatives: ETQA (continued)
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Unit/Std ID

110060
114226
115317
115318

12161
123223
123483
123485
123486
123487
123488
123501
123503
123505
123506
123507
123508

12436
12891
13059
13102

13104
13106
13107

13925
14155
15234
15235

230070
242559

242585
242714
263936
264674
264675

264676
264677

264678
264679

264680
264681

7818
7859
7880

Title

Plan learning programmes that redress social development issues
Interpret and manage conflicts within the workplace
Perform duties of an immigration official at a port of entry
Administer and control the movement of persons and goods across international borders at
ports of entry
Establish; develop and manage media relationships to promote the image of Government
Demonstrate understanding of the legal principles of marriage in South Africa
Evaluate the effects of counter-xenophobia and non-racism on a work environment
Control aiding and abetting activities
Explain the administration of a port control office
Carry out immigration law enforcement administration
Safe-keep and handling of face-value documents and stamps
Interpret current legislation and policies related to Immigration Services in South Africa
Administer and manage security checks at an Immigration Service Centre in South Africa
Administer and monitor Immigration fines at a South African Immigration Service Centre
Establish and maintain internal and external client relations within a public service context
Administer provisioning for procurement
Administer the movement and sojourn of foreigners in South Africa
Develop and manage government communication campaigns
Apply concepts and principles of business ethics in the professional environment
Prepare and analyse financial reports for different types of business entities
Apply the processes of planning and control as it relates to budgeting; standard costing and
decentralised control
Determine the relationship between risk and return
Determine capital investment appraisal
Develop understanding within an organisation about the risks associated with its functioning
and contexts
Present information in a public setting
Create and maintain positive workplace relationships
Apply efficient time management to the work of a department/division/section
Prepare and conduct staff selection interviews
Present an informed argument on a current issue in a business sector
Analyse and interpret qualitative and quantitative data from relevant reports in order to make
a recommendation or inform a decision for an entity
Analyse the dynamics of different interactive styles in client relationships
Apply elementary statistical methods
Apply knowledge of issues of diversity in a specific South African context
Demonstrate understanding of fingerprinting for identification purposes
Demonstrate knowledge and understanding of potential identity fraud and corruption in a
Department of Home Affairs context
Apply knowledge of current and past influences to explain demographic trends
Demonstrate knowledge and understanding of civic services in the context of the Department
of Home Affairs
Screen an applicant to establish identity
Demonstrate knowledge and understanding of refugee affairs in the context of the Department
of Home Affairs
Adjudicate a claim for refugee status
Demonstrate knowledge and insight into current affairs that could have implications for the
Department of Home Affairs
Conduct on-the-job coaching
Lead and manage teams of people
Prepare; implement; manage and control budgets

Level

Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5

Level 7
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 7
Level 6
Level 6
Level 6

Level 6
Level 6
Level 6

Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 5

Level 5
Level 5
Level 5
Level 4
Level 5

Level 5
Level 5

Level 5
Level 5

Level 5
Level 5

Level 5
Level 6
Level 6

Credits

8
8
6
9

...
5
4
4
5
5
4
7
4
5
6
4
4
6
5

16
15

8
10

5

5
5
4
3
5
5

3
5
5
5
5

3
10

10
10

10
5

5
6

10

Key Initiatives: ETQA (continued)



4 PSETA Annual Report 2010 8/20/10 1:30 PM Page 34 

Composite

C M Y CM MY CY CMY K

30  PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT

Unit/Std ID

7887
7888
7889
8561
9224
9243

14348
13915

13929
13937
13928
13930
13935

9242
10978

242819
242811

7883
7886

13934
12435
12437
12163

7881

Title

Develop and manage Marketing Plans and Strategies
Monitor staff performance
Manage quality in the organisation
Function in a Team
Implement policies regarding HIV/AIDS in the workplace
Monitor occupational health and safety
Process incoming and outgoing telephone calls
Demonstrate knowledge and understanding of HIV/AIDS in a workplace; and its effects on a
business sub-sector; own organisation and a specific workplace
Co-ordinate meetings; minor events and travel arrangements
Monitor and control office supplies
Monitor and control reception area
Monitor and control the receiving and satisfaction of visitors
Plan and conduct basic research in an office environment
Analyse external factors influencing people who have special needs
Recruit and select candidates to fill defined positions
Motivate and Build a Team
Prioritise time and work for self and team
Manage workplace relations
Develop and implement a business plan
Plan and prepare meeting communications
Develop Government communication policies; strategies and processes
Establish; develop and manage media relationships to promote the policies of Government
Manage government communication processes and strategies
Manage workplace diversity

Level

Level 6
Level 6
Level 6
Level 4
Level 5
Level 4
Level 2
Level 3

Level 3
Level 3
Level 3
Level 3
Level 3
Level 5
Level 4
Level 4
Level 4
Level 6
Level 5
Level 3
Level 7
Level 7
Level 7
Level 6

Credits

12
5
6
4
4
8
3
4

3
2
3
4
6
4

10
10

5
5
8
4
6
6
5
5

The two Tables below indicate the total active PSETA accredited providers per Province and the total PSETA providers
accredited in the 2009'10 financial year, respectively:

Province

Eastern Cape
Free State
Gauteng
KwaZulu-Natal
Limpopo
Mpumalanga
North West
Northern Cape
Western Cape
Total

Provincial Academies

0
0
0
1
0
0
0
0
1
2

State Academies

0
0
4
0
0
0
0
0
0
4

FET Colleges

0
0
0
0
0
1
0
0
0
1

Private Providers

2
1

14
1
1
0
1
0
0

20

Total per Province

2
1

18
2
1
1
1
0
1

27

Province

Eastern Cape
Free State
Gauteng
KwaZulu-Natal
North West
Western Cape
Total

Provincial Academies

1

1
1

State Academies

2

2

Private Providers

1
1
7

1

10

Total per Province

1
1
9
1
1
1

13

Key Initiatives: ETQA (continued)
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We appointed an expert to assist with closing the
performance gaps identified by the 2008 SAQA audit.
As a result, the ETQA achieved full SAQA accreditation
until 2011 or until the ETQA regulations are repealed.
This is in line with other fully accredited SETA ETQAs
that had been assisted to address performance indicators
before achieving accreditation.

During the year, the ETQA conducted workshops to
train accredited providers in the use of the PSETAs
new MIS, while the web-enablement of the QMS is
revitalising and streamlining the PSETA processes and
operations.

The roll-out of further ISOE support initiatives included
engagement with Further Education and Training
Institutions, particularly in regions where the activities
of the PSETA have not been visible. Projects included
partnership discussions with the Maluti FET College in
the Eastern Free State about a poultry project and with
the Goldfields FET College in Welkom about a
mechanical engineering project. These partnerships
will be concluded in the new financial year.

Repositioning the PSETA as quality assurance body

Following the promulgation of the National Qualifications
Framework (NQF) Act, 67 of 2008, the amended Skills
Development Act, 37 of 2008, and the structural
changes introduced with the passing of these laws, the
PSETA is preparing a strategy to facilitate partnerships
between any sub-sectors and the new Quality Assurance
Council for Trades and Occupations (QCTO).

In the forthcoming financial year, the ETQA will engage
with stakeholders to develop a policy framework for
working with the QCTO. It is foreseen that this project
will culminate in the development of a policy framework
for partnerships with the QCTO, a strategy to align the
PSETA ETQA's activities with QCTO requirements and
communicate the new trajectory to stakeholders. A pilot
project will be undertaken to develop new and review
existing qualifications using the new Occupational
Qualifications Framework model.

Ongoing engagement with Palama, national departments
and sectoral and provincial academies

The PSETA ETQA continued to engage with these strategic
organisations to advance mutual projects. The regular bi-
monthly meetings between PSETA ETQA and Palama
contributed positively to the working relationship between
the two organisations.

Way forward

While much was achieved during the review period, and
two appointments in the key standard setting and quality
promotion function added to these achievements, still
more could be achieved with increased capacity.

Going forward, we envisage a quick completion of the
QMS project, finalisation and full implementation of the
framework for partnerships with the QCTO and achieving
growth in our team and recognition as a capable and
credible quality assurance body for the largest sector in
the country, the public service.

Key Initiatives: ETQA (continued)

Province

1. Eastern Cape
2. Free State
3. Gauteng
4. KwaZulu Natal
5. Limpopo
6. Mpumalanga
7. North West
8. Northern Cape
9. Western Cape
    Total

Full Accreditation

0
0

11
1
1

1
0
1

16

Provisional Accreditation

1
0
1
0
0

0
0
0
2

Programme Approval

1
1
6
1
0
1
0
0
0

10

Total

2
1

18
2
1
1
1
0
1

27

PSETA Providers per accreditation status
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for the year ended 31 March 2010

Public Sector Service Education and Training Authority

Report by the Auditor-General

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction
1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

(PSETA), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information as set out on pages 33 to 74.

Accounting Authority's responsibility for the financial statements
2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and in the manner
required by the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa (PFMA). This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor-General's responsibility
3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of South Africa, section 4 of the Public Audit Act of South Africa

(PAA) and section 14(6)(a) of the Skills Development Act of South Africa (SDA), my responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on conducting the audit in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1570 of 2009 issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 27 November
2009. Because of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however, I was not able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion
Comparative figures and opening balances
4. I was unable to obtain sufficient accounting records and adequate documentation to support the following opening

balances and comparative figures:
• Non-current liability: NSF deferred income liability amounting to R7,751 million as disclosed in the statement

of financial position. As a result, I could not determine the existence, valuation and completeness thereof.
• Reserves: Accumulated surplus amounting to R7.441 million, as disclosed in the statement of changes in net

assets. As a result, I could not determine the existence, valuation and completeness thereof.
5. As a result, I was also unable to verify the accuracy of the comparative figures disclosed in the cash flow statement.

My opinion on the financial statements for the period 31 March 2009 was modified accordingly. My opinion on
the financial statements of the current period is also modified, because of the effect of this matter on the comparability
of the current period's figures and the corresponding figures.

Trade and other payables: NSF deferred income Stability
6. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the existence, rights and

obligations, completeness and valuation of the NSF deferred income liability balance stated at R7,774 million
(2009: R7.751 million) in the financial statements. Due to limitations, alternative procedures could not be performed.

Loans receivable: Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA)
7. Included in accounts receivable is an amount of R6.332 million (2009: R2.755 million), supporting evidence that

the amount is recoverable could not be provided by the entity. Alternative procedures performed could also not
provide the required assurance. Consequently, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
myself as to the existence, rights, valuation and allocation of the accounts receivable.

Reserves
8. As a result of the above. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support the existence,
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for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

Public Sector Service Education and Training Authority

Report by the Auditor-General

completeness, valuation and rights and obligations of the accumulated surplus amounting to R8.398 million (2009:
R7,441 million).

Disclaimer of opinion
9. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, I have not

been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, I do
not express an opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of matters
10. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters:

Significant uncertainties
11. As disclosed in note 19.2 to the financial statements, the PSETA applied for retention of surplus funds to the

National Treasury. The approval of this request had not yet been granted at the date of my report.
12. As disclosed in note 19.4 to the financial statements, a contingency was disclosed to amount of R10,853 million

relating to potential fraudulent payments not verified by the forensic investigators.

Restatement of corresponding figures
13. As per note 18 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2009 have been restated.

Management conducted a reconstruction process on the accounts of the PSETA for the period 1 April 2000 to 31
March 2009. This resulted in the restatement of the opening balances and comparative figures.

Irregular expenditure
14. As disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure of R5.229 million (2009: R2.352 million)

was incurred, as a result of operational expenditure being paid with NSF funds.

Material losses through criminal conduct
15. As disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, material losses to the amount of R1,419 million were incurred

in the prior years, as a result of fraudulent transactions identified through an investigation conducted by the
accounting authority.

Additional matter
16. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter:

Re-licensing
17. As indicated in the accounting authority's report, the SETAs were established for a five-year period until 31 March

2010. However, this licence was renewed by the Department of Higher Education and Training until 31 March
2011. A final decision with regard to the new SETA landscape is expected later in the year.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

18. In terms of the PAA and General Notice 1570 of 2009 issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 27 November
2009, I include below my findings on the report on predetermined objectives, compliance with the PFMA and
financial management (internal control).

Findings
Predetermined objectives
Presentation of reported predetermined objectives
19. Reasons for major variances between planned and actual reported targets were not adequately explained.
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for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

Public Sector Service Education and Training Authority

Report by the Auditor-General

Reported indicators not reliable as inadequate supporting source information was provided
20. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence in relation to the reported existence of learners and occurrence of learnership

transactions could not be obtained. Due to limitations, alternative procedures could not be performed.

Compliance with laws and regulations
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa and Treasury Regulations of 2005
Non-adherence to legislation
21. Contrary to the requirements of section 50(1) of the PFMA, the general responsibilities of the accounting authority

were not fulfilled.
22. Contrary to the requirements of section 51(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.2.1, all relevant policies

and procedures had not been developed or approved.
23. Contrary to the requirements of section 51(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.2.1, the PSETA did

not perform a risk assessment during the year.
24. Contrary to the requirements of section 51(1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.2.2, the PSETA did

not have an internal audit function for most of the financial year. Internal auditors were only appointed in March
2010.

25. Contrary to the requirements of section 51(1)(a)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 27.1, the PSETA did not
have an audit committee for nine months of the year. The audit committee members were only appointed in January
2010.

26. Contrary to the requirements of section 51(1)(c) of the PFMA, there was no formal agreement between the DPSA
and the PSETA to determine responsibility for the safekeeping and use of assets.

27. Contrary to the requirements of section 55(3) of the PFMA, the annual report for the financial year ended 2008-
09 was tabled in Parliament on 14 June 2010, which was not within one month from the date of the audit report.
The annual report for the financial year ended 2007-08 had not been tabled.

28. Contrary to the requirements of section 54(1) of the PFMA, the accounting authority did not submit to the Auditor-
General appropriate documentation to support the NFS liability, predetermined objectives and the receivable from
DPSA.

29. Contrary to the requirements of Treasury Regulation 16A, the PSETA made payments to service providers without
evidence that proper procurement procedures had been followed.

30. Contrary to the requirements of Treasury Regulation 28.3, the PSETA did not develop a framework of acceptable
levels of materiality and significance with the relevant executive authority.

31. Contrary to the requirements of Treasury Regulation 30.2, the PSETA did not establish procedures for quarterly
reporting to the executive authority in order to facilitate effective performance monitoring, evaluation and corrective
action.

Skills Development Act No. 97 of 1998 (SDA)
Non-adherence to legislation
32. Contrary to the requirements of section 13(3)(a) of the SDA, the number of representatives on the board from

organised labour was not equal to the number of representative from the employer.
33. Contrary to the requirements of section 17(3) of the SDA, the PSETA did not adhere to the requirements of

learnership agreements that must be in the prescribed form and registered with a SETA in the prescribed manner.

Other regulations
Non-adherence to legislation
34. Contrary to the requirements of the regulations published in Government Gazette 82784(3), the PSETA did not

use its skills development levies as allocated to the discretionary grant, to run any projects as required.

INTERNAL CONTROL
35. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and the report on predetermined

objectives and compliance with the PFMA, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness



4 PSETA Annual Report 2010 8/20/10 1:30 PM Page 40 

Composite

C M Y CM MY CY CMY K

36  PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

Public Sector Service Education and Training Authority

Report by the Auditor-General

of internal control. The matters reported below are limited to the deficiencies identified during the audit.

Leadership
36. The accounting authority did not exercise oversight responsibility over reporting and compliance with laws and

regulations and internal control. As a result, proper policies, procedures and accounting records were not in place.
37. Key officials were not available throughout the audit process. As a result, delays were experienced in obtaining

information on predetermined objectives, and in obtaining management comments on findings raised.
38. Actions were not taken to address risks relating to the achievement of complete and accurate financial and

performance reporting. Due to a lack of a proper document management system, adequate financial and performance
records were not kept by the entity, which consequently resulted in insufficient audit evidence being provided.

Financial and performance management
39. Management and staff did not fulfil their duties and responsibilities as required. Consequently, the PSETA did not

meet its performance targets as disclosed in the annual report.
40. There was a lack of policies and adequate systems to facilitate the preparation of the performance reports.

Governance
41. A proper risk assessment was not conducted during the year and therefore the internal control processes did not

address the specific risk areas.
42. Internal controls were not selected and developed to prevent or detect and correct material misstatements in

reporting on financial information and predetermined objectives. Therefore, a large number of material corrections
had to be processed on the financial statements and report on predetermined objectives submitted for audit purposes.

43. Internal audit was only appointed in March 2010 and as a consequence did not fulfil its responsibilities as set
out in legislation and in accordance with accepted best practice and standards.

44. The audit committee was only appointed in January 2010 and as a consequence did not fulfil its responsibilities
as set out in legislation and in accordance with accepted best practice.

OTHER REPORTS

Investigations in progress
45. As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements, the PSETA received a final forensic audit report from

PricewaterhouseCoopers subsequent to year-end, the report is being followed up by the accounting authority.

Pretoria
30 July 2010
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for the year ended 31 March 2010

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Statement of Responsibility

Responsibility for Annual Financial Statements

The members of the Accounting Authority are responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements.

Approval of the PSETA Annual Financial Statements

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2010, have been approved by the Accounting Authority
in terms of section 51(1)(f) of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), no 1 of 1999 on 31 May 2010 and are
signed on their behalf by:

M. H. Fadal
Chairperson of the Board

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY

The Board of the PSETA has pleasure in presenting their report on the activities of the entity for the financial year
ended 31st March 2010

GOING CONCERN

Board members believe that the PSETA will be a going concern in the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue
to adopt a going concern basis in the preparation of these Annual Financial Statements. Furthermore, take note of
the note below on re-establishment.

SETA RE-ESTABLISHMENT

SETAs were established for a five year period ended 31 March 2010 and their mandate was extended by a further
one year to 31 March 2011. The PSETA has applied for the renewal of its certificate of establishment as a SETA
and according to the published proposed Seta landscape, the PSETA is going to be retained unchanged. It is expected
that the legislated renewal process will be concluded by 30 September 2010

SERVICES RENDERED BY THE PSETA

The PSETA is regulated by Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and is listed as a schedule 3A Public Entity in
line with the Policy Framework for the Governance and administration of the public sector institutions.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The composition of the Board is in line with the provisions of section 11 of the Skills Development Act, 1998 which
requires that the SETAS should carry out their mandate in consultation and cooperation with the stakeholders. PSETA
Board, in compliance with the said provisions and as the Accounting Authority, consists of the following members:
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Report of the Accounting Authority

Representatives of the Board

Board member

Mr M H Fadal
(Chairperson)
Mr T Maepa
Mr H Konkie
Mr H Bresler
Ms R Modipa

Mr L Phepheng
Ms N Lebaka
Mr B Maduna
Mr L Tsipane
Ms K Kgang

Mr F Fields
Mr P Huma
Dr A Mahapa **
Mr P Matshidze**

Ms A Samboer
Ms T Zulu
Mr J Rantete**
Mr S Majombozi**
Ms I Kuhn
Mr A Josiah

Ms K Moseki

Ms R Magagula
Mr D Bvuma
Ms BJ Nake

Organisation

PSA
NEHAWU
PSA
Premier's Office:
Limpopo
POPCRU
NEHAWU
DoL
DPSA
Department of
Home Affairs
POPCRU
NEHAWU
 POPCRU
Council for
Medical Schemes
PSA
POPCRU
PSETA
PSETA
PSA
Premier's Office:
Free State
Premier's Office:
North West
IEC
DPSA
PSETA

Representing

Independent

Labour
Labour
Labour
Employer

Labour
Labour
Employer
Employer
Employer

Labour
Labour
Labour
Employer

Labour
Labour
Act CEO
Act CEO
Labour
Employer

Employer

Employer
Employer
Act CEO

Equity
status*

CM

BM
BM
WM
BF

BM
BF
BM
BM
BF

BM
BM
BM
BM

CF
BF
BM
BM
WF
CM

BF

BF
BM
BF

Board meetings
2009 2010
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Workshops
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* Black male (BM), Coloured male (CM), White male (WM), Black female (BF); Coloured female (CF)
**Board member left during the year



4 PSETA Annual Report 2010 8/20/10 1:30 PM Page 43 

Composite

C M Y CM MY CY CMY K

PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT  39

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

PSETA's performance is measured by the Department of Labour against the National Skills Development Strategy
II. The Service Level Agreement and Scorecard were signed between PSETA and the Department of Labour. PSETA
has adequate infrastructure which it uses for record keeping and updating purposes, quality assurance requirements
as well as reporting to the Department of Labour.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board set and executed their fiduciary responsibilities in line with the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA).
The Board under the ultimate responsibility of the Chairman created sufficient space to maintain a continuous
overview of organisational effectiveness, efficiency, Board performance and conformance. The Chairman has no
executive functions. The role of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate.

The Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the responsibility of the day to day running of the PSETA.

PSETA has six (6) subcommittees, which assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities. Each Committee operates
within its terms of reference and delegated responsibilities. The Board sub-committees are:

Audit Committee

PSETA Audit Committee has been established and is chaired by an Independent member. The Committee has had
two (2) meetings and have drafted and recommended for Board approval the Audit Committee Charter and concurred
with the appointment of the Internal Auditors.

Representatives of the Audit Committee

Finance Committee

The Finance Committee consists of two non executive members representing the two constituents and the Chief
Executive Officer. It is responsible for:
• the consideration and recommendation of the annual budget to the Board
• dealing with such financial matters as referred to the Committee from time to time
• scrutinising policies with financial implications and making the appropriate recommendation to the Board and
• to determine the financial impact of any changes to the current structure.

Name of member

Mr. Ailwei Freddy Sinthumule (Chairperson)
Mr. Mashukudu James Maboa
Mr. Moloto William Mokwele
Mr. Henk Bresler
Ms. Kgomotso Kgang

02/03/10

�
�
�

31/03/10

�
�
�

TOTAL

2
2
2
 -
 -

Meeting dates

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Report of the Accounting Authority
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Representatives of the Finance Committee

* Finance Committee member left during the year

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee consists of six (6) non executive members appointed by the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer (Ex Officio)

Representatives of the Executive Committee

* Executive Committee member left during the year
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Report of the Accounting Authority

Name of member

Mr. B. Maduna (Chairperson)
Ms. I. Kuhn
Mr. M. H. Fadal
Mr. A. Mahapa*
Mr. H. Konkie
Ms. B. J. Nake (CEO)
Mr. S. Majombozi (CEO)*
Mr. J. Rantete (CEO)*

6,7/04/09

�

�

17/04/09

�

�

�

24/11/09

�
�
�

�

Meeting dates

Name of member

Mr. T. Maepa (Chairperson)
Mr. M. H. Fadal
Mr. H. Konkie
Ms. I. Kuhn
Mr. F. Fields
Mr. P. Matshidze*
Dr. A. Mahapa*
Mr. L. Tsipane
Ms. R. Modipa
Ms. B. J. Nake (CEO)
Mr. S. Majombozi (CEO)*
Mr. J. Rantete (CEO)*

1,2/04/09

�

�

�

�

�

28/06/09

�
�

�
�

�

�

11,12/07/09

�
�
�

�

�
�

03/09/09

�
�
�

�

�

16/10/09

�
�
�

�
�

�

�

12/11/09

�

28/11/09

�
�
�

�

�

29/01/10

�
�
�
�

�
�

11/03/10

�

�
�

�
�
�

Meeting dates
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Learnership and ETQA Committee

Representatives of the Learnership and ETQA Committee

* Learnership and ETQA Member left during the year

Skills Planning Committee

Representatives of the Skills Planning Committee

* Skills Planning Member left during the year

Human Resources & Legal Affairs Committee

Representatives of the Human Resources & Legal Affairs Committee

* Human Resources & Legal Affairs Committee Member left during the year
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Report of the Accounting Authority

Name of member

Ms. N. Lebaka (Chairperson)
Mr. H. Bresler
Mr. T. Maepa
Mr. L. Tsipane
Ms. N. Mlondo
Ms. B. J. Nake (CEO)
Mr. S. Majombozi (CEO)*
Mr. J. Rantete (CEO)*

04/08/09

�
�
�
�
�

�

05/10/09

�
�

�
�

�

Meeting dates

Name of member

Ms. K. Kgang (Chairperson)
Mr. H. Konkie
Mr. T. Maepa
Mr. K. Moseki
Ms. B. J. Nake (CEO)
Mr. S. Majombozi (CEO)*
Mr. J. Rantete (CEO)*

07/08/09

�
�

�

30/11/09

�
�
�

�

Meeting dates

Name of member

Mr. P. Huma (chairperson)
Mr. F. Fields
Ms. T. Zulu
Mr. D. Bvuma
Mr. A. Josiah
Mr. T. Maepa
Ms. A. Samboer
Ms. B. J. Nake (CEO)
Mr. S. Majombozi (CEO)*
Mr. J. Rantete (CEO)*

30/05/09

�
�

�

23/09/09

�

�

�
�

�

Meeting dates
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RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

PSETA endeavours to minimise risk by maintaining appropriate systems, policies, personnel and controls throughout
the organisation. A risk assessment exercise is currently being carried out to identify areas of risk and to map
appropriate controls. The process is being facilitated by the internal auditors and the risk assessment report is expected
as soon as this process is complete.

To meet its responsibility with respect to providing reliable financial information, the PSETA maintains financial and
operational systems of internal control. These controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are concluded in accordance with management's authority, that the assets are adequately safeguarded against material
loss of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposal and those transactions are properly authorised and recorded.

The following policies were approved by the Board;
1. Human Resources Policy
2. Fraud and Risk Management Policy
3. Supply Chain Management Policy
4. Travel, Accommodation and Subsistence Policy
5. Non-Current Assets Policy
6. Financial Procurement Manual
7. Cellular Phone Policy

INTERNAL AUDIT

PSETA has an internal audit function which has been outsourced to Aurco Group, who provides the Audit Committee
and Management with reasonable assurances that internal controls are appropriate and effective. The internal auditors
were appointed in March 2010.

RECORD OF MEETINGS

1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

42  PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Report of the Accounting Authority

No. of Meetings

Board

8

Audit

2

Finance

3

Learnership/ETQA

2

Skills Planning

2

ExCo

7

HR & Legal

2
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REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD MEMBERS

A Board member is paid an Honorarium of R3 200 for attending Board Meetings. An Executive Committee Board
Member is paid a Board fee of R3 200 and all other Committees are paid at a rate of R1 600 per meeting. The
Chairperson of the Board is paid a Board fee of R6 500 per Board meeting and paid the normal Committees rates
for Committee meetings. All Board members are paid travel claims at a rate pf R7.30 per kilometre traveled to the
meeting venue. The following table outlines Board fees and Travel Claims paid to members of the PSETA Board.

* Employer representatives do not receive Board fees as they are public service employees.

Audit Committee

Independent members of the Audit Committee are paid R6 500 per meeting.
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for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

Public Sector Service Education and Training Authority

Statement of Responsibility

BOARD MEMBER

Mr. M. H. Fadal (Chairperson)
Mr. T. Maepa
Mr. H. Konkie
Mr. H. Bresler
Ms. R. Modipa*
Mr. L. Phepheng
Ms. N. Lebaka
Mr. B. Maduna*
Mr. L. Tsipane*
Ms. K. Kgang*
Mr. F. Fields
Mr. P. Huma
Dr. A. Mahapa
Mr. P. Matshidze*
Ms. A. Samboer
Ms. T. Zulu
Ms. I. Kuhn
Mr. A. Josiah*
Ms. K. Moseki*
Ms. R. Magagula*
Mr. D. Bvuma
Mr. J. Rantete*
Mr. S. Majombozi*
Ms. B. J. Nake*

BOARD FEES

96,300
 62,400
 43,200
 32,000

 -
 6,400

 30,400
 -
 -
 -

 24,800
 17,600

 6,400
 -

 17,600
 16,000
 32,000

 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

ALLOWANCE

 24,747
 4,015

 10,862
 3,555

 -
 2,584
 6,760
 5,694

 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 2,351
 -
 -
 -

TOTAL

121,047
 66,415
 54,062
 35,555

 -
 8,984

 37,160
 5,694

 -
 -

 24,800
 17,600

 6,400
 -

 17,600
 16,000
 32,000

 -
 -
 -

 2,351
 -
 -
 -

Member Name

Mr. A. F. Sintumule
Mr. M. Mokwele
Mr. J. Maboa

Board Fees

13,000
 13,000
 13,000

Allowance

 -
 -
 -

Total

13,000
 13,000
 13,000
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

We are pleased to present our report for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Audit Committee members and attendance

The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet four times per annum as per its
terms of reference. During the current financial year two meetings were held.

The effectiveness of internal control

The Audit Committee became functional in March 2010, and as a result the Committee is unable to give an objective
comment on the effectiveness of the internal controls.

Evaluation of financial statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements and recommended it for Board approval.

Internal Audit

The internal audit function has not been conducted for most of the financial year. This was due to the late appointment
of the outsourced company and the need to collect source documents and account for prior periods. The Internal
Auditors were appointed in March 2010 and conducted internal audit for the financial year in retrospect.

We are therefore unable to ascertain that the internal audit function was operating effectively and that it has addressed
the risks pertinent to the entity and its audits.

Mr. A. F. Sinthumule
Chairperson of the Audit Committee

Date: 31 July 2010

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Report of the Audit Committee

for the year ended 31 March 2010

Name of member

Mr. Ailwei Freddy Sinthumule (Chairperson) (Appointed 12 January 2010)
Mr. Mashukudu James Maboa (Appointed 12 January 2010)
Mr. Moloto William Mokwele (Appointed 12 January 2010)
Mr. Henk Bresler (Appointed 12 January 2010)
Ms. Kgomotso Kgang (Appointed 12 January 2010)
Internal Auditor
Auditor General

Number of meetings attended

2
2
2

1
1
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Statement of Financial Performance

for the year ended 31 March 2010

REVENUE

Non Exchange Revenue
National Skills Income
Levy Income

Exchange Revenue
Finance Income

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES

Bank Charges
Mandatory Grant Refund
National Skills Fund Expenses

TOTAL EXPENSES

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

Notes

3

4

5
6
7

31-Mar-10
R

988,960
2,262

986,698

41,414
41,414

1,030,374

16,859
54,172

2,262

73,293

957,081

RESTATED
31-Mar-09

R

 1,182,186
 241,103
 941,083

 305,692
 305,692

 1,487,878

 10,401
 -

 241,103

 251,504

 1,236,374
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 March 2010

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and Other Receivables
Loans Receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and Other Payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUNDS AND RESERVES

Administration Reserve
Discretionary Reserve

RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

Notes

8
9

10

11

14.2

31-Mar-10
R

 16,681,258
 10,120,577

 228,417
 6,332,264

 16,681,258

 8,283,153

 8,283,153

 8,398,105

 -892,957
 9,291,061

 16,681,258

RESTATED
31-Mar-09

R

 16,679,131
 13,688,471

 234,945
 2,755,715

 16,679,131

 9,238,107

 9,238,107

 7,441,024

 -992,663
 8,433,687

 16,679,131
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 march 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from stakeholders
Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Cash generated from / (utilised in) operations

Interest received

Net cash inflows / (outflows) from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Loan to Operational Fund

Net cash inflows / (outflows) from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT  47

Notes

13

13

8

31-Mar-10
R

 967,723
 -1,065,245

 -97,522

 106,177

 8,655

 -

 -3,576,549

 -3,576,549

 -3,567,894
 13,688,471

 10,120,577

RESTATED
31-Mar-09

R

 2,052,446
 -1,662,297

 390,149

 739,010

 1,129,159

 -

 -2,755,715

 -2,755,715

 -1,626,556
 15,315,027

 13,688,471
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

for the year ended 31 March 2010

Balance at 1 April 2008
Prior year Error
Balance at 1 April 2008 as
restated

Net surplus per restatement
of Financial Performance as
previously stated
Allocation of unapproriated
surplus as previously stated
Excess reserves transferred to
Discretionary Reserve as
previously stated
Balance at 31 March 2009
as restated
Net surplus per restatement
of Financial Performance
Allocation of unapproriated
surplus
Excess reserves transferred to
Discretionary Reserve
Balance at 31 March 2010

Notes

18

 Administration
Reserve

 R
 -

 -1,099,898

 -1,099,898

 107,235

 -992,663

 99,706

 -892,957

 Employer
Grant Reserve

 R
 -
 -

 -

 588,177

 -588,177

 -

 582,829

 -582,829
 -

 Discretionary
Reserve

 R
 28,978,272

 -21,673,725

 7,304,547

 540,963

 588,177

 8,433,687

 274,546

 582,829
 9,291,061

 Unappropriated
Surplus

 R
 -
 -

 -

 1,236,374

 -1,236,374

 -

-

 957,081

 -957,081

 -

Total

 R
 28,978,272

 -22,773,623

 6,204,649

 1,236,374

 -

 -

 7,441,024

 957,081

 -

 -
 8,398,105
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010

1. Accounting Policies

1.1 Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the effective Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

Standard of GRAP Replaced Statement of GAAP

GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements AC 101: Presentation of financial statements
GRAP 2: Cash flow statements AC 118: Cash flow statements
GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in accounting AC 103: Accounting policies, changes in 

estimates and errors accounting estimates and errors
GRAP 4: The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange AC 112: Accounting for the effects of changes

Rates in foreign rates
GRAP 5: Borrowing costs AC 114: Borrowing costs
GRAP 6: Consolidated and separate financial AC 132: Consolidated financial statements and

Statements the accounting for investments in subsidiaries
GRAP 7: Investments in Associate AC 110: Accounting for investments in
GRAP 8: Interest in Joint Ventures associates
GRAP 9: Revenue from exchange transactions AC 111: Revenue
GRAP 10: Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary AC 124: Financial reporting in hyperinflationary

Economies economies
GRAP 11: Construction Contracts AC 109: Construction Contracts
GRAP 12: Inventories AC 108: Inventories
GRAP 13: Leases AC 105: Leases
GRAP 14: Events after the reporting date AC 107: Events after balance sheet date
GRAP 16: Investment Property AC 135: Investment property
GRAP 17: Property, plant and equipment AC 123: Property, plant and equipment
GRAP 19: Provisions, contingent liabilities and AC 130: Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets contingent assets
GRAP 100:Non-current assets held for sale and AC 142: Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operations discontinued operations
GRAP 101:Agriculture AC 137: Agriculture
GRAP 102:Intangible assets AC 129: Intangible assets

The recognition and measurement principles in the above GRAP and GAAP Statements do not differ or result in
material differences in items presented and disclosed in the financial statements. The implementation of GRAP 1,
2 & 3 has resulted in the following significant changes in the presentation of the financial statements:
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1.1.1 Terminology differences

Standard of GRAP Replaced Statement of GAAP
Statement of financial performance Income Statement
Statement of financial position Balance sheet
Statement of changes in net position Statement of changes in equity
Net assets Equity
Surplus / deficit for the period Profit / loss for the period
Accumulated surplus / deficit Retained earnings
Contribution from owners Share capital
Distribution to owners Dividends
Reporting date Balance sheet date

1.1.2 The cash flow statement was prepared in accordance with the direct method therefore no change was brought
about by the introduction of GRAP.

1.1.3 Specific information such as:
(a) receivables from non-exchange transactions, including taxes and transfers;
(b) taxes and transfers payable;
(c) trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions; must be presented separately on the statement
     of financial position.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal
accounting policies set out below. These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

The following standards were approved by the Accounting Standards Board but are not yet effective:

GRAP 18 - Segment Reporting
GRAP 21 - Impairment of non-cash-generating assets
GRAP 23 - Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers)
GRAP 24 - Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
GRAP 25 - Employee Benefits
GRAP 26 - Impairment of cash-generating assets
GRAP 103 - Heritage Assets
GRAP 104 - Financial Instruments

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

1.2 Currency

These financial statements are presented in South African Rands since that is the currency in which the majority of
the entity transactions are denominated. Figures are rounded to the nearest Rand.

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)
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1.3 Significant judgments

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information
and the application of judgment are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ
from these estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgments include:

Trade Receivables

The company assesses its trade receivables for impairment at each balance sheet date. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the company makes judgments as to whether there is
observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset. The
impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national
and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with
defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the
estimated loss emergence period.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher
of value-in-use calculations and fair values. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is
reasonably possible that the assumptions may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require
a material adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill and tangible assets.

The company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows
are largely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may
have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets.

1.4 Revenue

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and these benefits
can be measured reliably.

1.4.1 Levy income

In terms of section 3(1) and 3(4) of the Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act No.9 of 1999), registered member
companies of the SETA pay a skills development levy of 1% of the total payroll cost to the South African Revenue
Services (SARS).

Eighty percent of skills development levies are paid over to the PSETA (net of the twenty percent contribution to the
National Skills Fund).

Levy income is recognised on the accrual basis.

A net receivable/payable is recognised for levies accrued as well as estimated SARS adjustments. An estimate due
to retrospective adjustments by SARS and outstanding levies due at year-end is based on prior year trends. Changes
to prior year estimates are accounted for in revenue in the current period.

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)
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The PSETA refunds amounts to employers in the form of grants, based on information from SARS. Where SARS
retrospectively amends the information on levies collected, it may result in grants that have been paid to certain
employers. A receivable relating to the overpayment to the employer in earlier periods is raised at the amount of such
grant over payment, net of bad debts and provision for irrecoverable amounts.

Revenue is adjusted for interseta transfers due to employers changing SETAs. Such adjustments are separately
disclosed as interseta transfers. The amount of the interseta adjustment is calculated according to the Standard
Operating Procedure issued by the Department of Labour issued May 2007.

When a new employer is transferred to the PSETA, the levies transferred by the former SETA are recognised as revenue
and allocated to the respective category to maintain its original identity.

1.4.2 Interest and penalties

Interest and penalties on the skills development levy are recognised on the accrual basis.

1.4.3 Government grants and other donor income

Funds transferred by the National Skills Fund (NSF) are accounted for in the financial statements of the PSETA as
a liability until the related eligible special project expenses are incurred, when the liability is extinguished and revenue
recognised.

Property, plant and equipment acquired through government projects are capitalized in the financial statements of
the PSETA, as the PSETA controls such assets for the duration of the project. Such assets are disposed of in terms
of agreement.

Conditional government grants and other conditional donor funding received are recorded as deferred income when
they become receivable and are then recognised as income on a systematic basis over the period necessary to match
the grants with the related costs which they are intended to compensate. Unconditional grants received are recognised
when the amounts have been received.

1.4.4 Investment income

Interest income accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and the effective
interest rate over the period to maturity.

1.5 Grants and project expenditure

A registered company may recover a maximum of 70% of its total levy payment by complying with the grant criteria
in accordance with the Skills Development Regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act 1999 (Act No.
9 of 1999).

Mandatory grants

The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised when the employer has submitted an application for
a grant in the prescribed form within the agreed upon cut-off period and the application has been approved as the
payment then becomes probable. The grant is equivalent to 50% of the total levies paid by the employer during the
corresponding financial period for the skills planning grant and skills implementation grant.

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)
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Discretionary grants and project expenditure

A SETA may, out of any surplus monies, determine and allocate discretionary grants to employers, education and
training providers and workers of the employers who have submitted an application for a discretionary grant in the
prescribed form within the agreed upon cut-off period. The grant payable and the related expenditure are recognised
when the application has been approved and the conditions are met.

Project expenditure comprises:
• costs that relate directly to the specific project;
• costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the project; and
• such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the SETA under the terms of the contract.

Such costs are allocated using methods that are systematic and rational and are applied consistently to all costs
having similar characteristics.

Discretionary grants and project costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. A receivable
is recognised net of a provision for irrecoverable amounts for incentive and other payments made to the extent of
expenses not yet incurred in terms of the contract.

1.6 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure means:
• overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
• expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance

with the purpose of the main division.

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature
of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial
performance.

1.7 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care
been exercised.

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature
of the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial
performance.

1.8 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorized expenditure, incurred
in contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -
• (a) this Act; or
• (b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
• (c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)
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National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the
PFMA requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008):

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before
year end and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular
expenditure register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note
to the financial statements.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement
is being awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with
the exception of updating the note to the financial statements.

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial
year, the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned
by the National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register.
If liability for the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person
is liable in law. Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If
recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment
and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be
updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure
related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to
the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register.

1.9 Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of
an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Depreciation
is calculated using rates applicable to reduce their values to residual values over their expected useful lives, using
the straight line method. The depreciation rates are as follows:

Item Average useful life
Buildings 50 years
Fixtures and Fittings 10 years
Furniture and Equipment 6 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years
Information Technology 3 years
Intangible Assets 2 years

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)
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The residual value and the useful life of each asset are reviewed at each financial year-end. Each part of an item of
property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or
loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

1.10 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership.

The SETA as a lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the PSETA's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant rate of
return to the PSETA's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The SETA as a lessee

Asset held under finance leases and the corresponding liability is recognised at their present value of the value of
the minimum lease payments at the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor in included in the
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs, which represent the difference between
the total leasing commitments and the estimated present value of the assets acquired, are charged to the income
statement over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

1.11 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:

• the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;

and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)
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1.11.1 Grants payments

A provision is recognised for grant payments once the specific criteria set out in the regulations to the Skills
Development Act, 97 of 1998 have been complied with by member companies and it's probable that the PSETA will
approve the payment. The measurement of the obligation involves an estimate, based on the established pattern of
past practice of approval for each type of grant.

1.11.2 Projects

No provision is made for projects approved at year end, unless the service in terms of the contract has been delivered
or the contract is of an onerous nature. Where a project has been approved, but has not been accrued for or provided
for, it is disclosed as commitments in the notes to the financial statements.

1.11.3 Provision for employee entitlement

The cost of other employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.
Employee entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date. Provisions included in the reporting date are
provisions for leave (based on the current salary rates) and bonuses.

1.12 Financial Instruments

Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Seta's Statements of Financial Position when the Seta
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial Assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the framework established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs except for those financial assets classified as a fair
value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets can be classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as 'at fair value through
profit or loss' (FVTPL), 'held to maturity investments', 'available for sale' (AFS) financial assets and 'loans and
receivables'. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition.

All financial assets of the Seta were categorised as loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as 'loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority
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Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
impacted. For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in the surplus or deficit.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL. All financial liabilities of the Seta were classified as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expenses over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

1.13 Reserves

The Reserves are made up of Administration reserve, Employer grant reserves, discretionary grant reserve and
Accumulated surplus in accordance with the Regulations issued in terms of the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act
No. 97 of 1998). The accrual basis of accounting is used to calculate the reserves and thus reserves are not an
indication of the cash used or available at the end of the year.

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority
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Member employer company levy payments are set aside in terms of the Skills Development Act and the regulations
in terms of the Act, for the purpose of:

2009/10 2008/09
% %

Administration costs of the PSETA 10 10
Employer Grant Fund Levy 50 50
Discretionary Grant 20 20

80 80

In addition, contributions received from public service employers in the national or provincial spheres of government
may be used to pay for its administration costs.

Interest and penalties received from SARS as well as interest received on investments are utilized for discretionary
grants and projects. Other income received is utilized in accordance with the original source of the income.

The net surplus/deficit is allocated to the administration reserve, the mandatory grant reserve and the discretionary
fund reserve based on the above.

Surplus funds are moved to the discretionary fund reserve from the administration reserve on the PSETA's board
approval (after prior written approval from National Treasury) and from the mandatory grant on fulfillment of the
PSETA's payment obligations.

1.14 Comparative figures

Where necessary,,comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.

1.15 Taxation

No provision has been made for taxation, as the SETA is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 10 of the Income
Tax Act, 1962 (Act 58 of 1962).

1.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

2. Allocation from reserves

Total Revenue
Administration levy income
(10%)
Mandatory grant levy income
(50%)
Discretionary grant levy
income (20%)
National Skills Fund Income
Investment Income

Total Expenses
Administration expenses
National Skills Fund expenses
Employer grants and project
expenses

Net surplus / (deficit) for the year

2010

Total per Statement of
Financial Performance

 1,030,374

123,337

 616,687

 246,675
 2,262

 41,414
 73,293
 16,859

 2,262

 54,172
 957,081

2010

Administration
Reserve

 123,337

123,337

 -

 -
 -

 16,859
 16,859

 -

 -
 106,478

2010

Employer Grants
Reserve

 616,687

 -

 616,687

 -
 -
 -

 54,172
 -
 -

 54,172
 562,515

2010

Discretionary
Reserve
 288,089

 -

 -

 246,675
 -

 41,414
 -
 -
 -

 -
 288,089

2010

Special
Projects
 2,262

 -

 -

 -
 2,262

 2,262
 -

 2,262

 -
 -

Total Revenue
Administration levy income
(10%)
Mandatory grant levy income
(50%)
Discretionary grant levy
income (20%)
National Skills Fund Income
Investment Income

Total Expenses
Administration expenses
National Skills Fund expenses

Net surplus / (deficit) for the year

2009

Total per Statement of
Financial Performance

 1,487,878

 117,635

 588,177

235,271
 241,103
 305,692
 251,504

 10,401
 241,103

 1,236,374

2009

Administration
Reserve

 117,635

117,635

 -

 -
 -

 10,401
 10,401

 -
 107,235

2009

Employer Grants
Reserve

 588,177

 -

 588,177

 -
 -

 -
 -
 -

 588,177

2009

Discretionary
Reserve
 540,963

 -

 -

 235,271
 -

 305,692
 -
 -
 -

 540,963

2009

Special
Projects

 241,103

 -

 -

 -
 241,103

 241,103
 -

 241,103
 -
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

3. Levy Income

3.1 Skills Development Levy Income

Levy Income
Levies income received from SARS

Total Levy Income

Levy Income
Levies income received from SARS
Inter-Seta transfers out

Total Levy Income

2010

Administration
 123,337

 123,337

2009

Administration
 243,481

 -125,846

 117,635

2010

Employer Grants
 616,687

 616,687

2009

Employer Grants
 1,217,408
 -629,231

 588,177

2010

Discretionary Grants
 246,675

 246,675

2009

Discretionary Grants
 486,963

 -251,692

 235,270

2010

Total
 986,698

 -
 986,698

2009

Total
 1,947,852

 -1,006,769
 -

 941,083

4. Investment Income

Interest Received on bank deposits

5. Administration expenses

Bank charges

2010

 41,414
 41,414

2010

 16,859

 16,859

2009

 305,692
 305,692

2009

 10,401

 10,401
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6. Mandatory Grant Refund

Gauteng Partnership Fund

7.National Skills Fund Expenses

Learnership Training
Bank Charges

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash in bank
Cash on hand

Short-term investments/instruments
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2010

 54,172
 54,172

2010

 -
 2,262

 2,262

 10,120,577
 10,120,577

 -
 -

 10,120,577

2009

 -
 -

2009

 236,884
 4,219

 241,103

13,688,471
13,688,471

 -
 -

13,688,471

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

As required in Treasury Regulation 31.2, National Treasury approved the banks where the bank accounts are held.
The weighted average Interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 6% (2009: 11%). The cash and cash equivalents
approximates the fair values at year end.

9. Trade and Other Receivables

9.1 From Non-Exchange transactions
DPSA
Employer receivables

9.2 From Exchange transactions
Ethel Creations
P. Nkaiseng
Interest Receivable - ABSA

2010

 116,856
 99,758

 216,613

 7,980
 3,135

 688
 11,803

 228,417

2009

 116,856
 67,082

 183,938

 7,980
 3,135

 39,892
 51,007

 234,945
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

10. Loans Receivable

Department of Public Service and
Administration

11. Trade and Other payables

Bank Charges
SABPP
Learnership Allowance Payable
DPSA
Competition Tribunal
Gauteng Partnership Fund
SARS payables
CHIETA
W&R SETA
FASSET
NSF Deferred Income Liability

11.1 SARS Payable

2010

Provision for levies incorrectly received

2009

Provision for levies incorrectly received

11.1

12

Opening
balance
 36,605
 36,605

Opening
balance
 26,790
 26,790

Change in
estimate

 -
 -

Change in
estimate

 -
 -

2010

6,332,264
6,332,264

2010

 130
 9,594
 6,400

 384,489
 1

 54,172
 50,306

 -
 884

 2,552
7,774,625
8,283,153

Addition

13,701
 13,701

Addition

 9,815
 9,815

2009

 2,755,715
 2,755,715

2009

 1,068
 9,594

 19,200
 384,489

 25,618
 -

 36,605
 1,006,769

 884
 2,552

 7,751,328
 9,238,107

Closing
Balance
 50,306
 50,306

Closing
Balance
 36,605
 36,605

An amount of R50 306 (2009:R36 605) relates to levies incorrectly contributed by employers, and paid over by
SARS and DoL, after being exempted from contributing skills development levies due to new legislation which came
into effect from 1 August 2005.

12. National Skills Fund: Special Projects

Balance as at 01 April 2009
Prior period adjustments
Interest
Utilised and recognised as revenue
Closing balance

2010

 7,751,328
 -

 25,559
 -2,262

 7,774,625

2009

 7,971,671
 -399,485
 420,245

 -241,103
 7,751,328
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

13. Reconciliation of net cash flow from operating activities to net surplus

Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Performance
Adjusted for non-cash items

Adjusted for items separately disclosed
Interest received

Adjusted for working capital changes
Decrease/(Increase) in receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in payables

Cash utilised in operations

14. Material losses through criminal conduct, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

14.1 Irregular expenditure

Opening balance
Add: Irregular Expenditure - Current year
Less: Amount condoned

Less: Amounts recoverable (not condoned)
Less: Amounts not recoverable (not condoned)
Irregular Expenditure awaiting condonation

2010

 957,081

 -106,177

 6,528
 -954,954

 -97,522

2010

 2,352,647
 3,594,549
 -717,847

 5,229,349
 -

 5,229,349

2009

 1,236,374

 -739,010

 96,738
 -203,954
 390,149

2009

 -
 2,791,905
 -439,259

 2,352,647
 -

 2,352,647

 2,876,702
 2,352,647
 5,229,349

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification

Current year
Prior years
Total

 2,352,647
 -

 2,352,647

Details of Irregular Expenditure - Current year

Incident

Operational Expenses paid through the National Skills Fund

Disciplinary steps/
criminal proceedings

None

Amount

 3,594,549
 3,594,549

Details of Irregular Expenditure condoned

Incident

Payment of Audit fees/invoices using NSF funds

Payment of CFO function invoices using NSF funds

Condoned by

Department of Public Service
and Administration
Department of Public Service
and Administration

Amount

 66,770

651,077
 717,847



4 PSETA Annual Report 2010 8/20/10 1:30 PM Page 68 

Composite

C M Y CM MY CY CMY K

64  PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT

Details of Irregular Expenditure recoverable (not condoned)

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

Incident

The procurement of legal services was not done in terms of the DPSA Supply
Chain Management (SCM) policies and procedures and the payments to the
service provider were made using NSF funds.

The procurement of the secretarial services was not done in terms of the DPSA
SCM policies and procedures and the payment of the service provider was made
using NSF funds.

The initial engagement for the provision of the CFO function was entered into
before final determination by the DPSA and payments to the service provider
were made using NSF funds.

Payment of Board fees and travel claims were made using NSF funds.

Payment of the PSETA's Acting Chief Executive Officer's salary using NSF funds.

The procurement of a marketing service provider was not done in terms of the
DPSA SCM policies and procedures and the payments thereof were made using
NSF funds.

The procurement of an sms server was not done in terms of the DPSA SCM
policies and procedures and the payments thereof were made using NSF funds.

Disciplinary steps/
criminal proceedings

None

None

None

None

None

None

None

Amount

83,064

511,703

1,466,815

 447,888

 311,600

 32,832

 22,800

2,876,702

The procurement of services outside the DPSA Supply Chain Management policies and procedures were necessitated
by the untenable operational relationship between the PSETA and DPSA which was causing the DPSA to delay
processing of key and essential services that were deemed necessary for the survival of the PSETA. In addition, the
use of the NSF funds to pay service providers was made to ensure that PSETA would avoid possible legal action by
service providers to force payment for services rendered on the premise that the funds will be reimbursed by the
DPSA when relations had normalised. The procurement outside the DPSA SCM policies and subsequent use of the
NSF funds was approved by the PSETA Board, hence no disciplinary action was taken against anyone.

14.2 Material losses through criminal misconduct

In 2005 the PSETA suffered financial prejudiced due to mismanagement by the then Finance Manager. During the
year, the former Finance Manager was convicted on 38 counts of fraud and/or theft and was sentenced to 10 years
in prison. A forensic investigation that was commissioned to quantify the full extend of the financial mismanagement
concluded that at least R1 419 920 was defrauded from PSETA's bank accounts and of this amount R320 022 was
recovered. Adjustments were made for the unrecovered fraud thereby causing the Administration Reserves to decline
to (R892 957) in 2010 ((R992 663): 2009)
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15. Events after statement of financial position date

15.1 Forensic Audit Report

On 2 July 2010, the PSETA received the final forensic audit report from PriceWaterhouseCoopers into the 2005
fraud. However, the report was inconclusive and recommended that the matter be referred back to the Special
Investigations Unit for further investigation.

15.2 Intention to place PSETA under Administration

On 31 May 2010, the PSETA received a letter from the Minister of Higher Education and Training requesting the
PSETA to give reasons why the PSETA should not be placed under administration. The PSETA responded to the
request on 18 June 2010 and the final determination on whether the PSETA is going to be placed under administration
or not is yet to be made.

16. Financial Instruments

In the course of the PSETA operations, it is exposed to interest rate, credit, liquidity and market risks. The Seta has
developed a comprehensive risk strategy in terms of TR 28.1 in order to monitor and control these risks. The risk
management process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the headings below.

16.1 Capital risk management

PSETA manages its capital to ensure that the projects of the organisation will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return on investments on surplus funds and ensuring continuous benefit for all stakeholders.
PSETA's overall strategy remains unchanged from the previous financial year. The capital structure consists of short-
term debt in the form of accounts payable and accounts receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

16.2 Categories of financial instruments

The PSETA's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective interest rates on financial instruments at Statement of
Financial Position date are as follows:

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2010
Cash
Accounts Receivable

Total financial assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total financial liabilities

Year ended 31 March 2010
Total financial assets
Total financial liabilities

Interest
Bearing

 10,120,577
 -

 10,120,577

 -
 -

 10,120,577
 -

 10,120,577

Effective
Interest rate

6%

6%

Non-Interest
Bearing

 -
 6,560,681
 6,560,681

 8,283,153
 8,283,153

 6,560,681
 8,283,153

 -1,722,472

Total

 10,120,577
 6,560,681

 16,681,258

 8,283,153
 8,283,153

 16,681,258
 8,283,153
 8,398,105

Total

 13,688,471
 2,990,660

 16,679,131

 9,238,107
 9,238,107

 16,679,131
 9,238,107
 7,441,024

Effective
Interest rate

11%

11%

2010 2009
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16.3 Financial risk management

PSETA's management monitors and manages the financial risk relating to operations of the organisation through
internal risk reports which analyse exposure of risk. These risks include market risks, including currency risk, fair
value risk and price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

16.3.1 Foreign currency risk

PSETA does not have currency risk.

16.3.2 Interest rate risk management

PSETA is exposed to interest rate risk as all surplus funds are invested in short-term cash vehicles. Although changes
in the current interest rate affect income received from these investments, all income received from these investments
is deemed to be income to the Discretionary Reserve and would not affect the productivity or existence of PSETA
directly.

16.3.3 Price risk

As PSETA has no investments in any form of equity, there is no exposure to price risk.

16.4 Credit risk

Financial assets, which potentially subject the Seta to the risk of non performance by counter parties and thereby
subject to credit concentrated risk, consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

The aging of Trade and Other Receivables from exchange transactions

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

Not past due
Past due 0 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 60 days
Past due 61 - 90 days
Past due 91 - 120 days
Past due +120 days

Gross
 100,446

 -
 -
 -
 -

 6,460,235

Impairment
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

Gross
 359,927
 434,324
 198,924
 445,381
 590,725
 961,379

Impairment
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

2010 2009

Not past due
Gross

 10,120,577
Impairment

 -
Gross

 13,688,471
Impairment

 -

2010 2009

16.4.1 Quality of Credit

All accounts receivables are with organisations well-known to PSETA. The Accounting Authority has full trust in the
quality of these accounts and did not deem it necessary to apply any further evaluation of credit policy.

16.4.2 Fair Value Accounts Receivable

The fair value of accounts receivable approximates the carrying amount due to the relative short term maturity of
these assets. The effect of discounting was considered and found to be immaterial.
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

16.4.3 Accounts Receivable: Defaults: Security and Pledges

No accounts receivable have defaulted during the year and no alternative arrangements have been made with any
accounts receivable during the year.

No security is held for any receivables.

No portion of the accounts receivable was pledged as security for any financial liabilities.

16.4.4 Maximum Exposure

The amount disclosed for accounts receivables represents the maximum exposure that credit risk posed to the entity.

16.4.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The PSETA management limits treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well-established financial
institutions approved by National Treasury through the approval of their investment policy in terms of Treasury
Regulations. PSETA's exposure is continuously monitored by the Accounting Authority.

Further, the organisation has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparts. PSETA only transacts
with Banks that are part of the "big 5" registered banks in South Africa and which are approved by National Treasury
as per the PFMA. The credit and investment ratings of the mentioned banks are monitored on a continuous basis
with international credit rating agencies to ensure the mitigation of any risks involved.

PSETA has developed a comprehensive investment policy in compliance with the PFMA which ensures that all surplus
fund investments are invested between at least 3 registered banks, and that at each bank no more than 50% is
invested up to a maximum 3-month fixed deposit with balance in money market or call accounts.

An interest change sensitivity analysis resulted in an immaterial effect on the Cash and Cash Equivalents of the entity.

The amount disclosed for Cash and Cash Equivalents represents the maximum exposure that credit risk poses to the
entity.

16.5 Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for the liquidity risk management rests with the Board of the PSETA, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of PSETA's short, medium and long term
funding and liquidity management requirements. PSETA manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flow.

2010

Trade and Other payables
from exchange transaction

Carrying
Amounts

 8,283,153

Contractual
Cash Flows

6 months
or less

 68,003

6 - 12
months

 -

1 - 2
years

19,409

More than
2 years

8,195,741

2009

Trade and Other payables
from exchange transaction

Carrying
Amounts

 9,238,107

Contractual
Cash Flows

6 months
or less

 10,883

6 - 12
months

 25,618

1 - 2
years

 1,023,144

More than
2 years

 8,178,462
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Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (continued)

16.5.1 Default

The entity has never defaulted on any of the accounts payable, nor were there any of the terms attached to the
accounts payables ever renegotiated.

16.5.2 Fair Values

Financial instruments recognised in the PSETA Statement of Financial Position include cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in
Note 1 to the financial statements.

17. Related Party Transactions

Transactions with other Setas

Inter-Seta transactions and balances arise due the movement of employers from one Seta to another. No other
transactions occurred during the year with other Setas.

Nature of Relationship

CHIETA Reporting to same department DoL
FASSET Reporting to same department DoL
W&R SETA Reporting to same department DoL

2010

 -

 -
 -

2009

 -

 -
 -

2010

 -
2,552

 884
3,436

2009

1,006,769
2,552

884
1,010,205

2010

 -
-2,552

 -884
-3,436

2009

-1,006,769
 -2,552

 -884
-1,010,205

Transfer in Transfer out Payable/Receivable

Transactions with other related parties

Government departments
Department of Public Service and Administration

Other related parties

2010

 6,332,264

2009

 2,755,715

Members of the accounting authority were required to disclose their interest in any contracts between the PSETA
and outside parties. As a result of this process, no other related parties were identified.

18. Correction of Prior Period Errors

The correction of the prior 2009 errors were necessitated by the following:
• Premature recognition of income after an application had been made to the National Skills Fund for additional

funding.
• Payments not related to the NSF project were erroneously expensed against the NSF revenue.
• Incorrect recognition of a government grant.
• Bank charges relating to the 2007/08 financial statements were not accrued.
• Levies incorrectly received from non qualifying employers.
• Incorrect accounting of levies emanating from failure to accrue employer levies at year end.
• Overstatement of learnership allowances.
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The financial statements have been corrected retrospectively and comparative figures have been restated to account
for the error. The effects of the restatement on the financial statements is summarised below:

Effect on Accumulated Surplus
Incorrect accounting principle used in the recording of additional fund application resulting
in the overstatement of revenue and over statement of NSF Receivable
Incorrect accounting principle used in the recording of additional fund application resulting
in the overstatement of revenue and understatement of NSF Deferred Income Liability
DPSA paid expenses not charged to NSF 
Mandatory Grants Refund Omitted 
Bank charges not accrued 
Overstatement of Learners Allowance 
Understatement of Expenses paid by DPSA resulting in a receivable being raised against
the DPSA 
Overstatement of Payroll Administration Expenses 
Overstatement of Learnership Training Expenses 
Non NSF expenses charged to the NSF 
Non-qualifying members levies incorrectly recognised as Income
Levies not accrued at year end 
Double expensing of a Learnership Training Invoice
Loss through fraud

2008

-15,490,410

 -6,866,677
 -384,488

 -3,436
 -907

 67,577

 -1,040
 747

 227,290
 511,243
 -26,790
 161,861
 131,306

 -1,099,898
 -22,773,623

Decrease in Skills Development Levy
Decrease in Investment Income
Increase in NSF Expenses
Decrease in NSF Expenses
Increase in NSF Income
Decrease in net surplus for the year

Increase in Trade and Other Payables - Non Exchange
Decrease in Trade and Other Payables - Non Exchange
Decrease in Accumulated Surplus

2010
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 -
 -
 -

2009
 -1,111,363

 -420,244
 -241,103

 4,058
 241,103

 -1,527,549

 -1,531,607
 4,058

 -1,527,549

19. Contingencies and Provisions

19.1 On 20 August 2009 the PSETA entered into a contract with the former Acting Chief Executive Officer, whereby
the Seta was to pay the former Acting Chief Executive Officer a gratuity payment amounting to R992 232.00.
As at the reporting date the payment had not been made and the Seta is facing possible legal action to force
payment. Should the legal action come to fruition, the PSETA is most likely to lose the court case and it is at
risk of paying the legal fees incurred by both parties and any interest charges that the court might determine,
in addition to the agreed amount. The full risk exposure cannot be objectively ascertained because of the
uncertainties associated with litigation proceedings.

19.2 In terms of the PFMA, all surplus funds at year end may be forfeited to National Treasury should an application
for retention of surplus funds be denied. A request for the accumulation of funds has been submitted to National
Treasury. At the time of compiling the financial statements, no reply had been received.
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19.3 A Contigent Asset of R1 099 898 has been recognised for a debt involving a former employee. The debt arose
from fraudulent transactions that were made by the former Finance Manager in 2005. The PSETA has sought
the assistance of the State Attorney in recovering the money. However, there is a high probability that the money
might not be recovered as the former Finance Manager is serving a prison term and the collectibility of the
amount is depented on obtaining a court order to attach any property that he might still be having.

19.4 In terms of the forensic audit report potential fraudulent payments amounting to R10 853 851 were reported.
The payments related to account ownership that could not be verified by the forensic investigators, PWC. The
forensic investigators recommended that the matter be referred to the Special Investigations Unit for further
investigation. The amount may lead to an increase in the NSF Liability if the Special Investigations Unit confirms
the fraudulent payments.

20. Government Assistance

20.1 The PSETA received Government Assistance amounting to R21.0 million (R14.7 million: 2009). The assistance
is budgeted and accounted for as a sub programme of the Department of Public Service and Administration.
The funding is provided on condition that all purchases and payments are made in terms of the DPSA Supply
Chain Management policies and procedures. The assistance is provided through the provision and payment of
salaries of DPSA employees seconded to PSETA and the procurement of PSETA's needs and the payment of
service providers. No actual cash and/or cash equivalents are transferred to the Seta. A detailed breakdown of
the nature and amount of assistance is provided below.

20.2 During the year the PSETA did not own any assets, all the assets used by the Seta in its operation were owned
by the DPSA. All the rights and obligations of ownership are retained by the DPSA. The assets are used for no
consideration and the costs associated with the use of the assets are accounted for by the DPSA. The assistance
is given on condition that the assets are used exclusively for PSETA operations. Below is a summary of the
assets used by the PSETA during the year:

Compensation to Employees
Goods and Services
Payment for financial assets
Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure
Machinery and Equipment
Software and Intangible Assets
Total Expenditure
Commitments
Total Expenditure and Commitments for the year
Budget Allocated at the beginning of the year
Amount not used at year end
Balance Retained by DPSA
Balance Retained by PSETA

2010

 7,510,017
 12,826,315

 -
 -

 500,389
 163,911

 21,000,632
 742,578

 21,743,210
 21,842,000

 98,790
 -98,790

 -

2009

 4,705,486
 9,318,155

 6,086
 16,124

 703,033
 -

 14,748,883
 2,298,843

 17,047,726
 20,575,000

 3,527,274
 -3,527,274

 -

Asset Category
Computer Equipment and Software
Office Furniture and Equipment
Motor Vehicle
Total

Cost
 1,436,167
 1,363,104

 121,570
 2,920,841

Accumulated Depreciation
 725,571
 947,721

 7,236
 1,680,527

Net Book Value
 710,596
 415,384
 114,334

 1,240,313
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20.3 The PSETA does not have its own staff compliment, during the year the Seta made use of DPSA employees
who were on secondment to the PSETA. The PSETA does not have contracts with the employees and their
recruitment and remuneration is done through the DPSA Human Resources Management policies and procedures
and all the relevant staffing costs are borne and accounted for by the DPSA. The employees are seconded on
condition that they provide services related to PSETA operations only.

NAME

Mr. S. Majombozi
(April 2009 to July 2009)
Mr. J. Rantete
(July 2009 to January 2010)
Ms. B. J. Nake
(February 2010 to March 2010)
Ms. M. P. Mohamed
Mr. Z. Khuzwayo
Mr. D. T. Makhetha
Ms. L. J. Mothoa
Mr. L. J. C. Renene

POSITION

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Acting Chief Executive Officer
Learnership Manager
ETQA Manager
Skills Planning Manager
Grants Manager
Procurement Contractor

SALARY

 311,600

578,807

54,873
 386,252
 374,920
 386,252
 324,537
 398,281

OTHER
ALLOWANCES

 -

 -

 -
 46,220

 102,763
 115,100

 32,748
 209,147

TOTAL

 311,600

 578,807

 54,873
 432,472
 477,683
 501,352
 357,285
 607,428

The Finance function was out sourced to an Accounting firm. The firm is engaged to provide the Seta's accounting
function and is made up of three people.

21. Budget Information

REVENUE
Non-Exchange Revenue
Levies Income
 Administration Levies (10%)
 Mandatory Grant (50%)
 Discretionary Grant (20%)

Non-Exchange Revenue
Finance Income

EXPENSES
Bank Charges
Mandatory Grants Refunds
Discretionary Grant Projects

Period Surplus/(Deficit)

Budgeted Amount

 576,000

 72,000
 360,000
 144,000

 684,424
 684,424

 5,106,500
 16,500
 90,000

 5,000,000

 -3,846,076

Actual

 986,698

 123,337
 616,687
 246,675

 41,414
 41,414

 71,031
 16,859
 54,172

 -

 957,081

Variance (Under)/Over

 410,698

 51,337
 256,687
 102,675

 -643,010
 -643,010

 5,035,469
 -359

 35,828
 5,000,000

 4,803,157
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21.1 Budget Variance Analysis

Expenses
Mandatory Grants Refunds - Only one (1) employer submitted their WSP and ATR on time.

Discretionary Grant Projects - The PSETA had planned to conduct a Lay-off Training programme during the year,
however the envisioned project was not conducted mainly because the sector covered by the PSETA was not negatively
affected by the economic depression.

21.2 Except for the expenditure noted in Note 14.1 the resources were obtained and used in accordance with the
legally adopted budget.

22. New Accounting Pronouncements

Various revisions have been made to the statements of GAAP which become effective in future years. None of these
revisions will have an impact on the financial statements of the PSETA.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are Standards and Interpretations in issue but not
yet effective. These include the following Standards and Interpretations that are applicable to the PSETA and may
have an impact in future:

An entity shall apply Standards of GRAP for annual financial statements covering periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined by the Minister of Finance in a regulation to be published in accordance with section 91(1)(b)
of the PFMA.

The PSETA shall apply the new GRAP standards when they become effective.

GRAP 18

GRAP 18 – Segment Reporting – The Standard provides guidance for reporting financial information by segments
but shall have no significant effect on PSETA’s financial statements.

GRAP 21

GRAP 21 – Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets – The Standard provides additional guidance on the procedures
that an entity applies to determine whether a non-cash-generating asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment
losses are recognised and reversed but shall have no significant effect on PSETA’s financial statements.

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting
GRAP 21 Impairment of Non-cash-generating Assets
GRAP 23 Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions
GRAP 24 Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements
GRAP 25 Employee Benefits
GRAP 103 Heritage Assets
GRAP 104 Financial Instruments

Effective date,
commencing on or after

Not yet effective
Not yet effective
Not yet effective
Not yet effective
Not yet effective
Not yet effective
Not yet effective
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GRAP 23

GRAP 23 – Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers) – The Standard prescribes the requirements,
recognition and measurement criteria for the financial reporting of revenue arising from non-exchange transactions
other than non-exchange transactions that give rise to an entity combination but shall have no significant effect on
PSETA’s financial statements.

GRAP 25

GRAP 25 – Employee Benefits – The standards provides guidance on the accounting and disclosure of employee
benefits relating to employee servitude. The standard requires that a liability be raised for earned employee benefits
which are to be paid in the future and to expense the economic benefits or service potential arising from service
provided by an employee in exchange for employee benefits. The standard shall have no significant effect on PSETA’s
financial statements.

GRAP 26

GRAP 26 – Impairment of Cash-generating Assets – The Standard provides guidance on determining whether a cash-
generating asset is impaired and to ensure that impairment losses are recognised and when the losses should be
reversed but shall have no significant effect on PSETA’s financial statements.

GRAP 103

GRAP 103 – Heritage Assets – The standard provides guidance on the accounting treatment of heritage assets but
shall have no significant effect on PSETA’s financial statements.

GRAP 104

GRAP 104 – Financial Instruments – The standard establishes principles for recognizing, measuring, presenting and
disclosing of financial instruments but will have no significant effect on PSETA’s financial statements.

23. Going Concern

SETAs were established for a five year period ended 31 March 2010 and their mandate was extended by a further
one year to 31 March 2011. The PSETA has applied for the renewal of its certificate of establishment as a SETA
and according to the published proposed Seta landscape, the PSETA is going to be retained unchanged. It is expected
that the legislated renewal process will be concluded by 30 September 2010.



4 PSETA Annual Report 2010 8/20/10 1:30 PM Page 78 

Composite

C M Y CM MY CY CMY K

74  PSETA  2009-2010 ANNUAL REPORT

Public Service Sector Education and Training Authority

Supplementary Information

1. World Cup Expenditure

The PSETA did not incur any World Cup expenditure in the 2008/09 and 2009/10 financial years. However, On 8
June 2010, the PSETA purchased two (2) medium sized flags, three (3) vuvuzelas and six (6) car window flags at a
total cost of R307.10 broken down as follows R158.00, R89.40 and R59.70 respectively.

for the year ended 31 March 2010
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“Our point of departure is simple: education and training is a common public
good which must not be sold and traded as a commodity, where only those with
money and other resources will be able to afford it. Only be providing equal

opportunities for all, irrespective of social background, can we contribute towards
building a nation in which everyone has a stake and a common loyalty.”

Minister of Higher Education and Training, Dr Blade Nizmande
Budget Vote Speech, 25 March 2010
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